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Cautionary Statement

This annual report contains various forward-looking statements regarding events and trends that are subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual results and financial position of the Group to differ
materially from the information presented herein. When used in this report, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“intend”, “anticipate”, “believe”, "expect”, “should” and similar expressions, as they relate to the Group, are
intended to identify such forward looking staterments. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Save as otherwise required by any
rules or regulations, the Group does not undertake any obligations publicly to release the result of any
revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to

reflect the occurrence of unanticipated eventls.
The risks and uncertainties referred to above include:

- actions or decisions by governmental and regulatory bodies, or changes in the regulatory framework
in which the Group operates, which may impact the ahility of the Group to carry on its businesses;

- changes or advances in technology, and availabitity of resources such as spectrum, necessary to use
new or existing technology, or customer and consumer preferences regarding technology;

- the performance of the markets in the UK, the EU and the wider region in which the Group operates;

- the ability of the Group to realise the benefits it expects from existing and future projects and
investments it is undertaking or plans to or may undertake;

- the ability of the Group to develop, expand and maintain its breadcast and machine-to-machine
infrastructure;

- the ability of the Group to obtain external financing or maintain sufficient capital to fund its existing
and future investments and projects;

- the Group’s dependency or only a limited number if key customers for a large percentage of its
revenue; and

- expectations as to revenues not under contract.

Guidance note to the annual report:

In this document, references to ‘Arqiva’ and "the Group’ refer to Argiva Group Limited (‘AGL") and its subsidiaries and
markets as the context may require. References to the ‘Company’ refer to the results and performance of Argiva Group
Limited as a standalcne entity.

A reference to a year expressed as 2021 is to the financial year ended 30 June 2021. This convention applies similarly to
any reference to a previous or subsequent financial year. Additionally, references to ‘current year’, ‘this year” and ‘the year’
are in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2021, References te the ‘prior year’ and ‘last year' are to the financial
year ended 30 June 2020.
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Arqiva in 2021

ENABLING A SWITCHED-ON WORLD TO FLOW

Who we are

Argiva is o leading UK communications infrastructure business. We are behind the scenes
delivering millions of vital connections to enable millions of people, businesses, and machines to
connect wherever they are through TV, radio and machine-to-machine data services, enabling a

switched-on world to flow.

Qur Infrastructure

c. 1,450
broadcast transmission sites in
the UK

1,150 TV transmissions sites

98.5%
of the UK population reached
through our TV services

275 channels
delivered into the UK and Ireland

Market leader for commercial
DTT! spectrum
owning two of the three main
national commercial multiplexes

1,100 TV channels delivered
internationally
via satellite to 5 continents

99.5% targeted network coverage
across the North of England and
Scotland on our smart energy
networks

c.80 satellite dishes accessing
30+ satellites

12 million premises
can connect to our smart meter
networks

50 million data points
delivered every day on our smart
metering networks

1 pefers to Digital Terrestrial Television best known for supporting Freeview
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How we operate

During 2021, following the sale of the Telecoms business, Argiva has implemented a hew single
business organisation structure, movihg away from the traditional business units and to an
integrated structure that will help better serve our customers, their delivery requirements and the
products and services that we provide across our Media Oistribution and Smart Utilities Networks
markets

Key Strategic ambitions

Undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast

Transition global media to cloud solutions

UK’s leading smart utilities platform

Innovator of scalable solutions for new
connectivity sectors
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Highlights

Following the sale of the Telecoms business at the beginning of the year, 2021 has continued to see a period of
change for Argiva with expected lower activity on certain major programmes as they reach completion. Whilst
core media distribution and smart utilities networks products have remained strong the Group has had
decreases on DTT multiplexes and has also seen the planned reduction in project levels related to the
completion of the 700 MHz Clearance programme. The Group is now also adapting to focus on key new
products for the future sustainability of the business.
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Key fBnatsoials 1 the year

- Revenue decrease of 28.3% (5.2% from continuing operations) and EBITDA decrease of 36.0% (15.1%
from continuing aperations)

- Managed reductions in revenue and EBITDA from the 700MHz clearance programme as the major
works on the programme successfully completed in August 2020;

- Decreases due to lower renewal pricing following the end of legacy contracts on the main OTT
multiplexes;

- Newrevenues and EBITDA generated from utilisation of broadcast sites for telecommunications
equipment and transitional services following Telecoms sale;

- Continuing the delivery of the core smart energy metering contracts with max network coverage of
99.5% now reached;

- Increase in revenue from ramp up of activity on smart water metering networks and device sales
fallowing contract wins in the prior year;

- Disposal of the Group’s Telecoms business for consideration of ¢. £2.0bn. A profit on disposal of
£1,038.3m is recognised in the Income statement;



Revenue £m

Arqgiva Group Limited {05254001)
Annual Repart and Financial Statements ~ Year Ended 30 June 2021

- Deleveraging of the Group following repayment of debt and swap instruments including £550.0m
facilities drawn, £108.0m senior term debt and £563.5m of senior bonds and notes.
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Group revenue has decreased 28.3% in total and 5.2% from continuing operations reflective of the change in
focus of the business following discantinued operations and the expected wind down of certain areas of the
business such as 700 MHz clearance following peak project activity in previous years.
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Kev Influences on FRITDA

The following waterfall chart demonstrates the year an year impact of total EBITDA for both continuing and
discontinued operations reffecting the key financial factors:

450

400

350

300

250

Discontinued operations: Sale of the Telecoms business, completed on 8 July 2020

Media Distribution: lower activity on 700MHz clearance programmes, pricing pressures and utilisation
on the main DTT multiplexes and increased site costs

Smart Utilities Networks: Increased activity from water metering device sales

Corporate: Focus on cost management and reduced staff costs

2020 reported Telecoms Dzscomteued  Meda Dstnduton Smarnt Utdmies Networks Corporate 2022 reported
Operatons
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Chairman’s Introduction

2021 Performance

2021 has continued ta be a year of challenge and change for the business. Following the sale of the Telecoms
business at the beginning of the year, we have continued to invest in our infrastructure and deliver services in
our core media distribution and smart utilities networks markets.

Despite the continuing backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have extended our presence in the utilities
sector with growing activity in the smart water metering business following contract wins with water companies
in the previous year. We have also had further wins in media distribution including new technology opportunities
in the Low Earth Orbit Market. These wins are key ta the strategic priorities of the Group as we caontinue to
develop our business.

The continuing business has seen a decline in revenue from previous years reflecting the change in our markets.
During the year, we have successfully completed the final 2 major activities for the 700MHz Clearance
programme in August 2020 with revenues declining as expected now that the main activities have completed.
Whilst we have also faced challenges on pricing on DTT multiplexes, utilisation has improved through the year
with the launch of new channels including GB News.

Sale of the Telecoms Business

On 8 July 2020, Argiva completed the sale of its Telecoms infrastructure to Celinex in a circa £2.0bn deal. This
transaction included the divestment of circa 7,400 of Argiva’s cellular sites, including masts and towers as well
as urban rooftop sites, and the right to market a further circa 900 of Argiva’s retained sites across the UK.
Relevant staff within the Telecoms business also transferred to Cellnex as part of the transaction. Through the
year, Argiva has continued to support the Cellnex UK business via Transitional Service Agreements (TSAs), the
majority of which had successfully completed prior to the year end.

The disposal proceeds were used to repay a portion of Argiva’s debt and related swaps enabling a significant
deleveraging of the Group’s debt levels.

Business Structure

Foliowing the sale of the Telecams infrastructure business, Argiva has adapted and changed how we operate.
The Group has undergone a significant restructuring in the year in order to right size and focus on cost
management for the smaller remaining business.

A key element of the Group reorganisation is a change in the operational structure. We have maved away from
our previous traditional business unit structure and adopted a new integrated operating model. This change wilt
allow the Group to facus an the caommercial and operational opportunities far the business in order to better
serve our customers in their requirements for our products and services, placing productivity, innovation and
sustainability at the heart of what we do.

This restructuring, along with the transformation programme progressing across the business allows Argiva (o
focus on its key markets with the priorities of becoming the undisputed leader in these sectors as well as
expanding the product offerings through innovation to build on our sustainability and continuously improve

Cutiook

Our markets are continuously changing and developing as data is consumed in ever increasing ways. They are
dynamic markets with evolving trends in how TV and radia cantent is delivered and the capabilities of machine-
to-machine networks in enabling energy and water companies to meet their sustainability targets. As we logk
forward and turn our attention to our new strategy for the business, Argiva can continue to build on our leading
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position in these markets and utilisc our assels Lo consolhdate this position but also take advantage of the many
opportunities that our markets provide for our business to be able to continue to grow.

Finally, on behalf of the Board 1 would like to thank all of our employees across the business for their continued
hard work and dedication to the successful provision of our services particularly through this period of significant
change for the business and the continued backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Mike Parton

Chairman

September 2021
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Chief Executive’s Statement

Transformation and Restructuring

Argiva has been transforming since 2018, and 2021 marked the start of the next chapter in this journey with
the sale of our towers business; supporting our strategy to become a simpler business that is more focussed
and effective.

We have reduced costs and implemented & new integrated operating model, designed to enable us to focus on
driving improvements in operational delivery and efficiency. Our focus now moves ta the commercial and
operational streams in order to give a clearer line of sight, and a shared accountability for customer delivery
and achievement of our business objectives. importantly, this change during the year took a holistic approach
to the requirements of our business and custamers, and the expertise needed ta achieve this. This has resulted
in a headcount reduction in Q4, allowing us ta start 2022 with a right-sized business as well as investing in new
skills aligned to our strategic and growth priorities.

We have also progressed the phased delivery of our Digital Transformation Programme through the year,

successfully launching the Service and Finance modules, with the implementation of our new ServiceNow and
Cracle ERP platform respectively, Our Digital Transformation Programme will take until early 2022 to be fuily
complete, but the benefits are already being realised across the business due to the phased roll out approach.

Financial Performance

Our financial results for the year are reflective of the period of change being faced across both our media
distribution and smart utilities networks markets. Revenue has decreased 5.2% from continuing operations.
This reflects the expected decrease in activity on externally funded major projects such as 700MHz clearance,
which peaked in previous years and successfully completed in August 2020. Our TV and radio broadcast
products in the media distribution market remain strong and whilst we saw revenues reduce year on year from
our DTT multiptexes reflecting a resetting of market pricing, underlying performance was strong with a number
of renewals and new contract wins such as GB News and Sky Arts increasing the channel utilisation on our
main multiplexes to 97%.

In the Utilities market, the core CSPN energy metering network has shown stable performance. In the water
metering markets, we have experienced growth with increased activity following contract wins with Anglian
Water in the prior year. Device sales in particular have grown as our customers benefit from increased
deployment across all of our smart utilities networks.

Across the board we have focussed on new product development trials that have met with positive customer
response and that will drive growth in future years.

Response to COVID-19

Through the year we have continued to maintain the high availability of our services across the country despite
the constraints imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic. We have carefully balanced the safety of our employees
while allowing aur key workers to deliver services for our customers, and were well prepared for the almost
overnight changes required to provide alternative working arrangements to support remate working for office-
based staff. We have respanded and adhered to the government guidelines, ensuring that all our sites fully
confarmed. In response to the dramatic fall in advertising revenues we stepped in to provide a package of
deferred and reduced transmission fees; this enabled many smaller commercial and community radio stations
to weather the pressure on cash flows and enable their survival.

12
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Strategy

We acknowledge the world is changing. Considering this, over the last year we have evaluated market trends
and worked closely with our customers and policy makers to establish a2 new vision, purpose, strategy and
operating model. Gur enduring purpose is ‘Enabling a switched-on warld to flow’ and this witt guide us to build
a sustainable future for Argiva. We have four clear ambitions, each with clear strategies:

- To remain the undisputed leader in UK TV and radioc broadcast

- To transition our global media portfoiio to cloud solutions

- Tobecome the UK's leading smart utilities platform

- Toinnovate providing of scalable connectivity solutions in new markets

More information on our strategy can be found on page 19.
Outiook

Arqgiva enjoys a large number of long-term inflation-linked contracts which provide good visthility of future
revenues, However, in order to enabie business growth we will continue to evelve our product and service
portfolios in both media distribution and smart utilities networks markets.

in our Media Distribution markets this has begun with the development of new solutions using cloud-based (P
technology, and in opening new revenue streams in the Low Earth Orbit satellite market, utilising Argiva’s
unigue infrastructure assets and spectrum to deliver connectivity solutions to this fast growing market
segment.

We have also engaged widely with the utility industry to establish a number of proof of concept trials which
build on our existing capabilities and infrastructure. These include trials of “hybrid connectivity” services that
utilise our satellite and private radic capabilities.

More content is being delivered through more devices and on more channels than ever before. Our markets
are looking for seamless access to connectivity and information that continues to meet the speed of
technology changes and delivers mission critical data reliably. These new products and services along with our
enduring and sustainable strategy are fundamental to how we operate in the future.

Paul Donovan
Chief Executive Officer

September 2021

13
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Business Overview

Enabling a switched-on world to flow

At the heart of media distribution and smart utilities networks in the UK and abroad, Argiva provides critical
data, network, and communications services.

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the worid, building and operating the
complex ecosystemns and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely, and
sustainably at scale — whether that’s through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Argiva is the only national provider of terrestrial television and radio broadcasting and provides machine-to-
machine connectivity for smart metering within the utilities sector. Argiva has invested significantly allowing it
to develap its communications infrastructure and technology as markets evolve.

Argiva earns network access and transmission service revenues from its customers, as well as fees for
engineering services and new projects. Argiva’s services tend to be mission-critical for its customers, as well as
providing the network coverage necessary for the fulfiiment of the universal service obligations (‘US0s’) for
terrestrial broadcast customers as set out in their operating licences from the UK gavernment.

Whilst we have a small overseas presence, Argiva’s assets, operations and markets are predominantly within
the UK and our business is driven from this region; therefore, we have minimal exposure to international
markets, Brexit impacts or foreign exchange.

Argiva has invested significantly into our capital infrastructure and has £1.4bn of property, plant, and equipment
at 30 June 2021, We are financed through a mixture of equity and long-term debt, with an average maturity
debt profile of over 4 years. The Group’s senior debt has an investment grade (BBB) rating from Standard and
Poor’s and Fitch and a junior debt rating of B-B1 from Fitch and Moody’s.

Attractive UK communications infrastructure market

DTT (Freeview) is the most popular TV platform in the UK covering 38.5% of the population

Smart networks deliver around 50 million data points every day

A market leader

Sole provider of terrestrial television network access (Freeview}
Owner of 2 of the 3 main national commercial multiplexes

Pre-eminent role in radio broadcasting both locally and nationally

High barriers to entry

Owner of critical national UK infrastructure that enables Public Service Broadcasters {PSB's) to meet their
government mandated universal coverage obligations

Significant investment would be required to replicate the infrastructure, including pianning permissions to
erect new masts

Long established relationships with its customers spanning more than 80 years

14



Argiva Group Limited {05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements - Year Ended 30 June 2021

Since 1922, Argiva has been enabling a switched-on world to flow.
We delivered the world’s first TV broadcast for the BBC from the tower af London's Alexandra Palace in 1936.

We also developed satellite TV in the 1870’s, Teletext, and launched the UK’'s national DAB radio and digital
television networks in the 2000s.

There's no resting on our laurels though. We were the first company in Europe to trial 5G fixed wireless acecess
technology in 2017, and we are currently working with our media distribution partners to develop new ways to
reach their viewers and listeners via the Cloud.

Plus, we have moved into new sectors, like Utilities. We won our first contract to deliver gas and electricity
metering in the north of England and Scotland in 2013 and followed that in 2015 with a partnership with Thames
Water to set up and run the world’s largest smart water metering netwark. More recently we have launched
our dual band communications device for further improved connection capabilities.

The Group's technology and infrastructure, combined with our history and experience, enable us to work with
averyane from major broadcasters {such as the BB, ITV, Sky, Turner and Canal+) to independent radio groups
and utility campanies (such as Thames Water and Anglian Water) to the Data Communications Company (DCC).

15
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Business model

The demand for information, content and entertainment is greater than ever. We all want to be connected 24/7.
This is the challenge that our customers are facing, delivering more content on more devices than ever before.

At Argiva we are enablers, applying our knowledge and expertise to technologies in order to unlock new
opportunities for our customers. We work in partnership, building and operating the infrastructure through
which data and content can flow effectively, securely, and sustainably.

Argiva seeks to maximise shareholder value by investing in our considerable site portfolio to not just maintain
reliability, but also to maximise its potential. Qur infrastructure and commercial operations cover the following
key sectors:

- Media Distribution
- Smart Utilities Networks

Sule of Tefecons

On 8 July 2020, Argiva successfully completed the sale of our Telecoms business to Cellnex in a circa £2.0bn deal.
The transaction comprised the divestment of ¢. 7,400 of Argiva's cellular sites, including masts and towers as
well as urban rooftop sites, and the right ta market a further c. 900 sites across the UK. In the execution of the
agreement, the Group has sold six subsidiary entities, the largest being Argiva Services Limited.

Following this disposal, the Group entered a period of evolution launching a new purpose and strategy. There
has been a change in the organisational structure of the Group, moving away from the traditional business units
and adopting an integrated operating model in order to better serve our customers with their requirements for
our products and services.

Media Distribution
The UKs onfy supplier of national terrestrial tefevision and radio broadcasting services
7 out of 10 UK households receive content for their main TV service through our Satellite and DTT network

Our radio infrastructure supports a range of services across the UK with 300 stations on DAB and 380 stations
across FM, AM, and MW

Media distribution services remain incredibly important for viewers and listeners in the UK. Even as viewing
habits change, Ofcom reparts 85% of people continue to watch broadeast content every week. And 9 out of 10
UK adults listen to over 20 hours of radio each week.

In an intensely competitive world, large media companies are increasingly focused on maonetising content that
is distributed multi-market, multi-platform and multi-device, This means increased complexity in reaching their
audiences, whilst also trying to reduce costs. To achieve a truly global reach, a shift of focus is needed to IP-
based delivery through the cloud and we are well positioned as the UK media hub to do this.

Media Disinbution at Argevd

The media distribution infrastructure includes sites for the transmission of terrestrial TV and radio, cperates the
Group’s licensed multiplexes, owns and operates teleports at key locations in the UK, as well as international
terrestrial fibre distribution network, media facilities, leased satellite capacity and delivers related engineering
projects.

The Group utilises a network of 1,150 TV sites to carry Freeview into circa 24 million households every day,
making it the UK's most popular TV platform. Argiva’s critical national infrastructure provides coverage to 98.5%
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of the UK’'s population. Within the sectar, Argiva holds a regulated position as the sole provider of network
access for terrestrial television broadcasting.

Argiva is a market leader in commercial DTT spectrum, owning the licences for two of the three main national
commercial DTT multiplexes, enabling leading broadcasters such as Sky, UKTV, CBS and Turner to deliver
broadcasting content using our channel capacity,

Argiva also owns the HD-enabled DTT multiplex ticences that provide services to freeview and other O7T-related
platforms. Additionally, Argiva operates more than 1,500 transmission sites for TV and radio, providing coverage
to the circa 90% of the UK population that listen to the radio. Argiva is a shareholder in, and operatar for both
commercial national DAB radio muitipiexes and it is the service provider for the BBC national DAB radio
multipiex.

Ouring the year the Group has successfully completed the programme to clear the 700MHz frequency range of
teievision signals.

The Group is also the UK's leading independent owner and operator of teleports and media management
facilities, serving many of the world’s largest multi-channel broadcast and sports-right organisations, as well as
providing data connectivity to the utilities and natural resources sectors.

Argiva manages the distribution of mare than 1,100 international TV channels for high profile customers
inciuding Al Jazeera, Discovery, BT Sport, Sky, NBCU, Sony and Turner including coverage of high-profile sporting
events, Argiva’s operation of reliable and secure VSAT (Very Small Aperture Terminal} communications networks
across the globe utilises a world class satellite and fibre network, providing real-time critical communications to
remote locations. Argiva uses our expertise and experience to enable us to keep pace with rapidly changing
dynamics and technology advancements, thereby underpinning the longevity and success of the product base.
Arqiva’s satellite network delivers content to the UK’s major Direct-to-Home (DTH) platforms including Sky and
Freesat as well as the increasingly popular IPTV, mobile and web TV platforms. We have also recently engaged
with the Low Earth Orbit satellite sector.

Media distribution contributes significant and stable cash flows to the Group with a long-term contracted,
substantially RPI-linked order book of £3.6bn (2020: £3.3bn) which includes major contracts running as far as
2050.
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Smart Utilities Networks

Advanced networks support the critical flow of data and content from connected TVs and smart meters for water,
gas, and electricity in the utilities sector.

Ambitious environmental and sustainability agendas from regulators are driving change across utility sectors,
providing huge opportunity for grawth. Today less than 10% of UK premises have a smart water meter, and less
than 30% have a smart energy meter. With 20% of water lost through leaks, water authorities are focused on
reducing them, and eliminating pollution caused by sewer flooding, Smart meters are providing an opportunity
to meet sustainability targets through reducing the UK's overall greenhouse gas emissions.

Smart Ulililivs feetworks at Argiva

Argiva generates revenues with respect to the build and operaticn of the smart ‘machine-to-machine’ networks
and other data transmission services applications. With a continuing focus on innovation and market
opportunities, Argiva is embracing the fast-developing machine-to-machine sector, particularly for utilities, for
which we utilise our Flex-net network across our smart metering contracts with utility and water companies,
The Group has invested in building M2M networks, which support major energy metering contracts spanning 15
years and covering more than 9 million premises, and water metering contracts which will cover 3 million homes.

Argiva has invested substantially in infrastructure as a result of these contracts which now result in recurring
cash flows during the long-term operational phases of the network delivery. The utilities business remains a key
part of the Argiva business and is a key strategic priority for growth with potential to become the UKs leading
smart utilities platform.

The smart utilities network has an order book of £0.6bn (2020: £0.7bn), with contracts running as far as 2035.

Carporate

Corporate functions at Arciva comprise Finance, Legal & Regulatory, Information Technology and People and
Culture.
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Our four strategic ambitinns will guide the key fuwus of the business. Our priorities in how we aim to achieve
these amhitions are set out below:

To be the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast

- Deliver sustainable TV and Radio broadcast, focusing on customer and operational excellence and
managing capacity and margins

- leverage our scale and the cloud, enabiing industry efficiency

- Expand services and drive renewals delivering greater value by selling across our portfolio of services,
creating long term partnerships while also developing value-added services in new areas

To transition glohal media to cloud based solutions

- Scaling IP and cloud-based services; investing in building broadcast quality cloud processing and
extending our footprint in live and events content

- Becoming the go-to choice for gur partners in cloud distribution so they can better manage their
global content flows across all formats

- Growing multiplex service, using our infrastructure to provide virtual, cost-effective, and scaiable
services to TV cable operators outside of the UK

To be the UK's leading smart utilities pltatform provider

- leading in connecting UK smart meters, maintaining market leadership, and scaling our operations to
drive and accelerate the roll-out of domestic smart meters

- Broadening our product offering, developing new value-added data-driven services in monitering and
control, that reduce energy use, water wastage and pallution

- Diversifying through forging partnerships and widening technology choice, to deliver new hyhbrid
connectivity solutions and real time network monitoring

To be an innovator of scalable solutions for new, high connectivity sectors

- Waorking with partners, building new solutions for new and emerging sectors that have growing and
more complex connectivity needs including those that make the most of our infrastructure, spectrum,
and satellite expertise
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Business Update

The Group's contracted order book value for continuing operations at 30 June 2021 was £4.2bn {2020: £4.0bn},
including £100m of new contracts for DTT and £660m for utilisation of broadcast sites. A significant proportion
of the value of this order hook relates to medium to long-term contracts which includes DTT and radio
transmission and smart energy and water metering, as well as other infrastructure services. The Group remains
focused on growth opportunities an targeted core infrastructure areas.

Media Distribution

700 MHz Clearance and DTT spectrum

The final stage auction results of the 700MHz and 3.6-3.8GHz spectrum was announced by Ofcom on 27 April
2021. Ofcom showed the four major operators BT/EE, Three, Teiefonica UK {O2) and Vodafone acquired all of
the 200MHz available across the 700MHz and 3.6-3.8GHz bands. Subject to the 3 months notice period being
triggered by the acquirors, Argiva will continue to have the right to remain in this spectrum with our DVB-T2
multiplex until June 2022. EE has been awarded the spectrum and stated in its press release that it secured it for
long-term strategic reasons and that it acknowledged that there were no handsets currently in the market to
support the band.

This will not affect Argiva’'s main national multiplexes.

The main substantive warks on the 700MHz Clearance project campleted in August 2020. The final project
completion activities continue with a project team until around Octaber 2021. Principal site warks include
completion of permanent antenna works at Emiey Moor, scheduted for Autumn 2021, and the removal of the
temporary mast at Emley Moor in 2022. The team size continues to reduce as the proiect ramps down in
accordance with the agreed plan, with efforts focused on commerciai and financial close-out.

DTT Multiplex

During the year the Groups signed and renewed a number of contracts which included new contracts with GB
News, Sky Arts and UKTV, and renewals with Dave, Yesterday and Dave Ja Vu. These contracts mature/extend —~
The majority of these contracts have been extended to 2026. DTT multiplex channel utilisation has remained
high finishing the year at 97%.

TV viewing on the DTT/Freeview platform has remained strong during the pandemic period as more people
stayed at hame. TV has provided a vital way of keeping pecple informed, helping with social isolation and
entertainment. The wide reach of the DTT platform has been of vital national importance for delivering news
and other information to the whole nation and for supporting society during the current pandemic. TV
advertising, an important driver for DTT has also been showing positive trends. Media markets have been
recovering and some industry sources expect TV advertising to grow in excess of 10% this year. in May, 1TV
reported that TV advertising trends have been positive since March and that it forecasts over 20% increase in
advertising revenues for the 2021 calendar year compared to 2020.

Government {(DCMS) updates

In August 2021 the DCMS published the outcome of its consultation on DTT Multiplex licences. It has allowed
all national multiplexes to renew for a further period until 2034 and provides Ofcom with the powers to renew
the licences until this date. The decision included a provision for Ofcom 1o revoke the licences on spectrum
management grounds subject to § years notice but that this could nat come into effect until 2030 at the
earliest. The decision and statement demonstrate strong long-term Government support for the OTT platform,

Separately, the Goverament continues its ongoing strategic review of public service broadcasting. There are a
number of strands to this. In June 2021 the DCMS autlined plans to consult on the sale of Channel 4 with the
consultation opening in June and running until September 2021. It also announced plans to review the
regulation of video on demand platforms. in July 2021 Ofcom published a set of recommendations to the
Government on the future of Public Service Media {PSM) as part of its ‘Small Screen: Big Debate’ review.
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Ofcomn’s report makes clear the ongoing importance of public service media and the importance of continuing
to reach the widest passible audience and deliver universality. The Government is now cansidering these
recommendations and plans to publish a white paper later this year.

Radio

Argiva continues to play an active part in shaping the outcome of the DCMS led Radio and Audio review. It was
expected that the final report would be published before Parliament’s summer recess but that has now been
delayed until the start of the autumn. The review will support the need to protect spectrum for Radio until at
least 2030 and states there will be no analogue switch-off within this period. This is consistent with our long-
term planning assumptions.

0On 22 July 2021 the DCMS published their consultation for National commercial DAB licencing. Argiva holds an
interest in both of the natinnal commercial multiplexes. D1 licence (Argiva 100% ownership) expiring in
November 2023 and SDL (Arqgiva has 40% ownership} expiring in March 2028, Argiva will lobby to secure an
autamatic licence renewal to 2035,

The pandemic has underlined the public service role of both commercial radio and the BBC. Argiva continues to
deliver the levels of availability and consistency that our broadcast partners expect. The company’s role in
supporting the radio sector financially during the year has been recognised by Government and key
stakeholders.

Customers continued o launch new stations on Argiva’s local DAB digital radio multiplexes across the country.
Cn the Sound Digital national multiplex (a icint venture of Argiva 40%, Bauer 30% and Wireless Group 30%) a
21st station, Boom Radio, launched in March bringing Sound Digital up to 100% occupancy. On Digital One (the
national multiplex wholly owned by Argiva) some capacity was released by a data service and, following a
competitive tender, GB News has announced the launch of a radio station which will run in parallel with its new
TV channel. As a result, Digital One also continues to operate at full capacity.

Advertising revenues in both the iocal and national sectors have continued to improve following the easing of
restrictions. With the current trajectory suggesting there will be no more lockdowns and our customer’s
revenues returning, the right decision was made in March to cease any lockdown discounts and return more to
normal business. In addition to this we have launched national station Boom radio and are set to jaunch another
one shortly leaving our national muxes at full capacity again.

Low Earth Orbit Market

Argiva has been developing opportunities in the Low Earth Orbit market. This is a new technology that relies on
a consteflation of thousands of small satellites orbiting the earth. By establishing multiple connections to
multiple satellites, the technology can for example provide satellite broadband anywhere in the worid. Key
players are SpaceX, Blue Origin and the recent UK Government investment in OneWeb plus established satellite
operators such as Telesat and ViaSat. This apportunity requires groundstations and therefore Argiva has the
capability to serve this market. The Group has now secured two customers.
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Smart Utilities Networks

New proof of concepts

Argiva has engaged with utility custemers and industry suppliers as we look to expand our presence in the
utilities industry. Building on our established credibility in critical national infrastructure and security we are
leveraging our relationships with existing and new ufility customers by exploring a number of proof of concepts
{PoCs). This includes a trial of “hybrid connectivity” services by utilising our satellite, cellutar and private radio
solutions. This trial with SGN is on-going. We are also continuing water product trials demonstrating both sewer
ievel monitoring and leakage monitaring as a service. The PoCs will give our utility customers the apportunity to
improve the management of their aperational networks and achieve their regulatory targets.

Anglian Water

In June 2020, following a competitive procurement process, Argiva was selected to deliver a smart metering
fixed network for Anglian Water. Designed to enhance Anglian’s water management capabilities, Argiva’s
contract will support them an their mission to achieve leakage and consumption savings and meet Ofwat’s water
ieakage targets for the next five-year period and beyond. During this initial five-year period, Arqiva will deploy
the fixed network infrastructure to support the operation of over three-guarters of a miflion (789,000 target by
2025) smart water meters across 24 planning zones. Argiva will then operate this network for a further 15 years.
Covering both household and non-household properties, the project will support Anglian Water's target
planning zones including Norwich, Lincoln, Northampton and Peterborough, among others.

Anglian successfully commenced their meter rollout on 6 July 2020 which was less than ane month from contract
signature and as at 30 June we were providing services to over 225,000 installed meters.

Thames Water

Since April 2015, Argiva has delivered a smart metering network that enables the collection, management and
transfer of metering data for Thames Water. At 30 June 2021, there were over 540,000 meters installed and well
aver 12 miltion meter readings being delivered per day. it is currently the largest smart water metering network
in the UK and has high coverage across the Thames Water London region. Recently we have instalied network
in the Haslemere, Guildford area which is Thames' first smart meter deployment outside London,.

in April 2021 Thames Water announced this development and that by using the smart metering data it has
helped to detect and prevent leaks on 28,000 customers’ private supply pipes which has saved 43 miliion litres
per day. Smart meters have helped Thames Water achieve what it described as the water industry's “biggest
reduction in leakage this century” and also having hit its regulatory target.

Northumbrian Water

Following a public competitive procurement, Argiva has been selected by Northumbrian Water Group 1o deliver
an initial roll-out of a smart metering network in Essex, where it operates as Essex & Suffolk Water. The project
will support Northumbrian Water in its cammitment to deliver smart metering to custamers within the current
Asset Management Plan (AMP 2020-2025), as well as meeting the company’s target to ensure all domestic
meters are smart by 2035.

The five-year contract will see Argiva build and monitor the fixed-network infrastructure, delivering connectivity
to up to 11,000 domestic meters, replacing both meters already installed and installing new meters for un-
metered supplies in empty meter chambers which have been identified. Meters are provided by Argiva’s
metering partner Sensus, a Xylem brand. The netwaork went live and installations began in May 2021.

Lessons learned from this initial implementation will be used to guide the subsequent smart-meter roll-out over
the rest of Northumbrian Water Group’s operating regions.

Yorkshire Water

Argiva was selected by Yorkshire Water to deliver and monitar a smart metering fixed-network trial as part of
its plans to revolutionise its ieakage detection programme. This two-year exercise will see Argiva build and
monitor the fixed-network infrastructure to facilitate the operation of new smart water meters for non-
household customers across 30 of Yorkshire Water’s areas. Designed to facilitate real-time monitoring, the
collection and presentation of frequent meter reading data provided hy the service will allow Yorkshire Water
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to reduce demand for water by rapidly identilying leaks and helping customers understand their usage. Meter
installations began in mid-May 2020 and our network went live at the end of June 2020.

Other smart water metering trials
In the Midlands, Argiva has been participating in a multi-vendor, multi-technology smart water metering
evaluation trial with a major water company. Over this period, we have again proven the excellent performance
of our technology and managed service. We are extending and expanding the trial for a further 12 manths, on
an exclusive basis, enabling the water company to evaluate fully the benefits and estabiish a business case for a
future full smart metering roll-out.

In May 2021, with Final Determinations announced mid July 2021, unger the Government special Green
Economic Recovery funding programme, Ofwat has allowed significant spend for additional Smart Water
Metering Programmes to he rompleted by April 2025, These awards have been made to Thames Water, Severn
Trent Water and South West Water.

Smart energy metering rollout

The Group’s smart metering communication network in the Narth of England and Scotland now covers 99.5% of
premises. There are currently over 1 million communications hubs operating on the network representing 20%
of the total UK communication hub installations. The customer, Smart DCC Ltd, {DCC), continues to submit
change requests that reflect new industry requirements, but at a reduced volume compared to the previous
periads,

The Group continues to support the DCC and their users ahead of meter rallout programmes. DCC has reported
that there are now c¢.8.5 million SMETS2 meters on the national netwark.

Corporate updates

covip 19

As lockdown eases Argiva continues to provide essential communications infrastructure for our media
distribution and smart utilities networks customers. We have deployed business continuity plans as part of our
operational and financial risk mitigation, to ensure the safety of our staff and the ongoing provision of services
for aur customers.

Measures are still in place across a number of areas including:
»  Ensuring workplaces and activities conform to the Government’s COVID Secure guidelines;
s Using rapid flow antigen tests for our key workers and encouraging all employees to order their own
rapid flow antigen tests;
* Implementing alternative working arrangements and technology to keep our employees and
contractors safe;
Ensuring that we plan and deliver our activities in line with government alert levels;
Ensuring regular communication with critical suppliers, identifying and managing any risks;
Ensuring disaster recovery plans can be invoked for critical assets and systems;
Considering risks to cyber security, which we have reviewed and further strengthened;
Financial fiquidity, which we review continually to ensure a rebust position. We benefitted from the
Government’s VAT deferral scheme but repaid the full amount in December 2020; and
»  Following the change in government guidance on 19 July 2021 the measures implemented across
workplaces have been relaxed whilst seeking to ensure the safety of employees and contractors.

¥ & & 9

Management changes

On 1 March 2021, Adrian Twyning joined Argiva as Chief of Operations. Adrian comes with significant experience
of leading large-scale operations, designing systems and leading sizeable business change. Most recently Adrian
was Director of Transformation at Dixons Carphone, where he implemented new IT platforms, launched a new
service proposition and oversaw a programme of retail rationalisation. Previously Adrian was at British Gas
where he led a 4,000 strong Field Operations team and led changes to culture, process and technology. He
replaces Neil Taplin, who left the company at the end of March 2021.
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Transformation update

The Transformation Programme continues ta deliver ta ptan with several releases to the business successfully
implemented in March, May and July 2021, These deliveries have provided the business with industry-leading
applications and integrations across Service Management (Service Now), 0SS, Asset Management (Siterra} and
Financial Management (ERP} capabilities. In turn, this prepares Argiva to be more respansive, agile and
efficient in its existing day-to-day aperatians as well as in any future markets where it intends to compete.

Dver the remainder of the 2021 calendar year, Transformation continues to deliver incremental enhancements
to these applications alongside the conclusion of the Cellnex TSA Exit obligations. Whilst the ariginal 'big 4’
components should conclude delivery in the 2021 calendar year, there are further deliveries currently
underway within the Utilities and Site management spaces. These are likely to spill over into the first calendar
guarter of 2022.

Sale of telecoms business

The sale of the Telecoms business to Celinex completed in July 2020 and the Group’s operational and asset
separation has now largely been completed. Operationally, Argiva has heen supporting Celinex’s UK business
via Transitional Services Agreements (TSA) originally planned for a period of up to 18 months from the deal
completion date. The majority of the TSAs have now completed, we expect the remainder to complete on or
before scheduled end dates across the various areas.

25



Arqiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2021

Financial review

Financial Performance

For the year ended 30 June 2021, revenue for the Group was £647.2m, a decrease of 28.3% from £902.8m in
the prior year on a total reported basis. Revenue from continuing operations for the year of £642.3mis a
decrease of 5.2% year on year from £677.5m in 2020. This decrease year on year is reflective of a period of
change for the Group and the markets in which we operate.

5195 (6.6)%
) 122.8 1.4%
642.3 (5.2)%

4.9 225.3 {97.8)%

S 647.2 902.8 (28.3)%

Revenue from discontinued operations relates to the Group’s telecoms infrastructure business and related
assets which were sold on 8 July 2020.

Media Distribution

Total Media Distribution revenue has decreased 6.6% from £556.4m to £519.5m year on year. Our core
broadcast TV and radio distribution products have remained strong and stable during the year with inflationary
increases due to RPI linked long term contracts. This area has been marginally impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic with discounts provided to our independent commercial radio customers to support them through
this period.

These increases have however been offset by a decrease in revenue from the 700MHz Clearance programme.
This multi-year engineering programme saw completion of major works in August 2020 and expected lower
activity levels throughout FY21 as a result. Further decreases are due to reduced revenues on the main DTT
multiplexes owing lower renewal pricing following the end of legacy contacts. Utilisation in this area has however
increased in the second half of the year due to new contracts and channel launches for example with GB News,
Sky Arts and UKTV.

Also included within Media Distribution is £26m of new revenues related to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecom’s towers
husiness to Cellnex.

Smart Utilities Networks

Revenues from Smart Utilities Networks have increased 1.4% year on year from £121.1m to £122.8m. This
increase is due to the ramp up of activity on water metering contracts that were won in the prior year, primarily
with higher revenue from sale of devices. The core energy metering contracts have increased revenues, although
have seen slight decreases in project revenues due to incremental change requests activities which continue but
at a lower level than the previous years which benefitted from additional testing services provided to the DCC.
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Gross profit was £415.1m, representing a 34.3% decrease fram £632.2m in the prior year. Gross profit from
continuing operations decreased by 14.6% year on year from £482.4mto £412.2m. The decrease in gross margin
is driven by the reductions in revenues described above, particularly the expected reduction from the 700MHz
Clearance programme. There have been increases in cost of sales as a result of power and site costs an broadcast
sites together with changes in product mix with higher volumes of lower margin device sales within the Smart
utilities networks area which has caused the gross profit on continuing operations to decline more than
revenues.

Other operating expenses from the continuing business were £79.8m, down 12.1% from £90.8m in the prior
year {total Group 2021: £80.2m; 2020: £109.2m). This decrease in operating expenses is largely driven by lower
labour costs follawing the sale of the Telecoms business and the initial savings from the subseguent restructuring
of the business. This has been partially offset by increases in ather areas such as T licernce and maintenance due
to news systems established as part of the Group’s digital transformation that has progressed in the year.

EBITDA is & non-GAAP measure and refers to “earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and
includes add-backs for certain items charged to operating profit that are not considerad to reflect the underlying
performance of the business. A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 28,

3842 (14.9)%

51.7 {19.1)%
{44.3) 17.6%
2916 {15.1)%
5 131.4 {98.1%
334.9 523.0 (36.0)%

Total EBITDA was £334.9m, a 36.0% decrease from the prior year of £523.0m and a 15.1% reduction in the
continuing business. The decrease in EBITDA from continuing operations has been driven by the reductions in
revenue as well as changes in product mix with increases in lower margin areas.

Within the Media Distribution business, EBITDA has reduced by 14.9%, from £384.2mto £327.1m. This has been
driven hy the lower activity levels on the 700MHz clearance programme as well as lower pricing and channel
utilisation on the main DTT multiplexes. EBITDA has also been impacted by increased site costs.

EBITDA for the Group’s Smart Usilities Networks business has decreased from £51.7m to £41.8m, a decrease of
19.1%. Whilst revenues in the water metering areas have increased and new contracts won in the prior year
have ramped up, this change in product mix impacts margins due to revenues driven by high valumes of low
margin device revenues. Further decreases are due to the decrease in the core energy metering contracts.

Other EBITDA comnprises costs for the non-revenue generating corporate areas of the business. The decrease in
these costs refiects the focus on cost management and transformation following the reorganisation of the
business including lower staff costs.

Depreciation has decreased £38.7m in total and £22.9m from the continuing business (2021: £167.9m; 2020:
£190.8m). Amortisation has decreased £0.7m in total and £0.6m from continuing operations {2021: £9.7m;
2020: £10.3m). The collective decrease of depreciation and amartisation of 18.1% from continuing aperations
is driven by a reduction in accelerated depreciation from the prior year period, particularly in connection with
assets replaced under the 700MHz clearance programme due to the lower activity in this area as the programme
winds down. Accelerated depreciation is expected to further decrease in subsequent years as these programmes
and the Group’s transformation programme progress.
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Exceptional items charged to operating profit were £25.6m, increased from £15.5m in 2020 in relation to the
continuing business. Exceptional costs in the current year predominantly relate to the implementation of
changes in the organisational design and structure of the business as well as corporate finance and refinancing
costs.

Operating profit has decreased 50.0% {2021: £140.4m; 2020: £281.2m) across the Group and 25.2% in relation
to continuing operations (2021: £138.5m; 2020: £185.1m). This decrease is primarily driven by the impacts from
the trading performance of the business and increased exceptional expenditure due to prajects undertaken in
the year, partially offset by the savings in depreciation due to managed lower activity levels on major capital
programmes and operating costs savings.

A reconciliation between operating profit and EBITDA is presented below:

Operating profit - 1404 B 281.2

Except{onal |te>ms charged to 256 347
operating profit

Depreciation 168.5 207.2
Amaortisation 9.7 10.4
Other Income {9.3) (10.5)
Total EBITDA 334.9 523.0
EBITDA from discontinued operations 2.5 131.4
EBITDA from continuing operations 332.4 391.6

Finance costs (net of finance income) were £660.4m, a decrease of 7.6% from £714.9m in 2020. This decrease is
predominantly due to the reduced principal debt amounts following the repayment of debt principal and swap
portfolio clesed out in the year, as well as a reduction in interest on lease obligations following the Telecoms
sale. This decrease has heen partially offset by the compounding effect of interest on outstanding shareholder
loan note principal and accrued interest.

On 8 July 2020, Argiva successfully completed the sale of its Telecoms business to Cellnexin a circa £2.0bn deal.
The transaction comprises the divestment of ¢. 7,400 of Argiva’s cellular sites, including masts and towers as
well as urban rooftop sites, and the right to market a further ¢.900 sites across the UK. In the execution of the
agreement, the Group has sold six subsidiaries, the largest being Argiva Services Limited. The Group has
recognised a £1,038.3m profit on disposal in exceptional gains for the year. The profit on dispasal is recognised
net of deferred income generated in relation to future services for TSAs and utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment,

The significant majority of the proceeds have been utilised to repay debt and related recoupon interest rate
hedging derivatives. On exit and recouponing of swap arrangements in the year, the Group has recognised £7.6m
of losses on the swaps and incurred £55.9m of break costs included in the other gains and losses balance in the
income statement. Further lasses recognised in the year include £0.8m (2020: £8.1m loss) in relation ta foreign
exchange movements on foreign denominated debt instruments prior to their settlement in July 2020. A loss of
£11.1m {2020: £121.7m gain) is recognised as a result of fair value movements of swaps, principally attributable
to the servicing of derivatives and changes in market yields and credit spreads.
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Profit before tax for the Group was £442.9m, an increase from a loss of £319.0m in the prior year. From
continuing operations, the loss before tax has increased from £400.3m in 2020 to £597.2m in the current year.
The profit/loss before tax is reported after non-cash charges of £756.9m [2020: £621.2m) as shown below:

%

Profit / (loss) before tax - 442.9 (319.0)

Depreciation 168.5 207.2
Amortisation 9.7 10.4
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 529.3 465.9
Other non-cash financing costs? 37.0 51.3
Foreign exchange revaluations on financing 0.8 8.1
Fair value movements on derivative financial instruments 11.1 {121.7)
Total non-cash charges 756.9 621.2
Adjusted profit before tax and non-cash charges 1,199.8 302.2

(including the disposal of the Telecoms business of £1,038.3m}

Cash Flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £398.7m, a 18.5% decrease from £489.0m in 2020, This decrease
is driven by the sale of the Telecoms business decreasing total operating profit and related operational cash
flows. This has been partially offset by higher working capita! inflows. Working capital inflows have increased
due to the recognition of one-off deferred income on additianal contract liahilities offset by a decrease in
accruals following the payment of VAT deferred at 30 June 2020 under the government COVID-19 deferral
scheme that has now been fully repaid. Other working capital decreases are due to utilisation of cash received
from customers in advance (decreasing deferred income contracts liabilities) and timing of payments,

Capital expenditure on the purchase of tangible and intangible assets has decreased principally owing to
decreased expenditure on significant capital projects such as the 700MHz Clearance programme as activity ievels
continue to wind down following completion of main activities and lower growth capex on towers following the
Telecoms disposal. This has been partially offset by increases in maintenance transformation capital expenditure
which has increased in the year as the Group continues to deliver its digital transformation across the business,

wpr

VR T w DN
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Net cash inflow from operating activities 489.0

Purchase of tangible and intangible assets {86.1) {115.4)
Net capital expenditure and financial investment {86.1) {115.4)
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment 312.6 373.6

activities

Cash Conversion as a % of EBITDA

Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment 93.3% 71.4%

? Includes amortisation of debt issuas costs, unwinding of discaunt on provisions, imputed interest and interest
on lease fiabilities
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Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment activities was £312.6m, a decrease of 16.3% from
£373.6m in the prior year. This decrease has been principally driven by the change in the Group’s operations
following the sale of the telecoms business reducing operating cash flows and working capital movements
explained above, partially offset by the reduction in capital expenditure as capital programmes progress. With
strong cash conversion leveis benefiting from high working capital inflows and continued reductions in capital
expenditure following completion of major programmes such as 700MHz Clearance.

The total cash flow for the year was a £133.4m inflow (2020: £89.8m inflow). This increase is owing to the
disposal proceeds received on sale of the telecams business largely offset by the repayment of borrowings and
exit of swap arrangements and related costs incurred on deleveraging of the Group, as well as changes in
operating cash flows explained above.

Financial Position

Net liabilities were £3,570.3m, representing & decrease of 12.8% from £4,095.1m in the prior year. The net
liability position is primarily driven by the capital structure reflecting the shareholder loan notes, borrowings,
lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments held, with decreases in these areas as a result of the
deleveraging of the Group with the proceeds on the sale of the Telecoms business in July 2020. Our assessment
of going concern is set out on page 31.

Financing

The Group established our Whole Business Securitisation {"WBS') structure in February 2013, and since then we
have continued to refinance elements of our debt structure further extending our maturity profile.

In July, disposal proceeds from the sale of the Telecoms business were utilised to repay debt and swaps including
£550.0m of facilities drawn at the previous year end, £108.0m of senior term debt and £563.5m of senior bonds
and notes resulting in a significant deleverage of the Group.

Standard and Poor’s and Fitch reconfirmed their rating of Argiva senior debt at BBB and Fitch and Moody's
confirmed the junior rating at B-/B1 respectively.

At 30 June 2021 the Group’s debt finance® comprised:

< 1lyear 1-2years 2-5 years >5 years Total
fm £m £fm fm £m

Facilities drawn - - - 26.1 26.1
Finance lease obligations 21.0 20.7 37.7 279 107.3
Senior term debt - 262.0 - 262.0
Senior bonds and notes 56.7 50.1 168.6 488.7 764.1
Junior bonds - 625.0 625.0
Shareholder lpan notes - 2,148.1 2,148.1
Total 77.7 70.8 3,241.4 542.7 3,932.6

Included within the above is £3,351.1m of fixed rate debt and £581.5m of floating rate debt. All debt held at 30
June 2021 is sterling denominated. The Group holds interest rate swaps {including infiation-linked interest rate
swaps) to hedge our interest rate exposures. This hedging strategy is employed to ensure the certainty of future
interest cash flows. The Group does not apply hedge accounting to these swap arrangements.

3 Excluding unamortised debt issue costs and accrued interest
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The Group continues to camply with all financial covenant requirements including the following historic
covenant ratio requirements at the senior financing level:

600 7.50

244 417
1.55 1.55
516 2.98

Ligquidity

To ensure we have sufficient available funds for working capital requirements and planned growth the Group
maintains cash reserves and access to undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast requirements. At 30 June
2021 the Group had a cash balance of £243.5m {2020: £110.1m). The Group carefully manages the credit risk on
liguid funds and derivative financial instruments with balances currently spread across a range of major financial
institutions, which have satisfactory credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The levels of
credit risk are monitored through the Group’s on-going risk management processes, which include a regular
review of counterparty credit ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by setting a maximum level and term for
deposits with any single counterparty.

“ 2500 L 2500
30.0 26.1 39
280.0 26.1 253.9

Post year end on 9 July 2021, the Group refinanced our bank facility and now has access to a £100.0m Working
Capital Facility maturing in 2024 and a £150.0m Liguidity fund. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a
margin over SONIA between 120 and 130bps. Argiva Financing No.1 Limited (a subsidiary of the Group) is the
borrower under these arrangements.

Going Concern

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from aur operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting inciuding
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments. The Group
has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally generated cash fiows, will continue to provide
sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations, including our contractual and cammercial
commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing. For this reason, the Directors are confident
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing this financial infarmation.

Foliowing the sale of the Group’s Telecoms infrastructure and related assets on 8 July 2020, management has
significantly deleveraged the Group, and maintain a cash position sufficient to meet current liabilities as they
fail due.

The Directors have also taken into account the potential implication of the current COVID-19 situation and have
determined that given there will continue to be demand for services provided by the Group and the Group has
a mixed customer base, the going concern basis remains appropriate.

* ‘Cash flow’ as defined under the Group’s financing commaon terms agreement, i.e. this is not a GAAP
measure.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses a combination of financial and non-financial key performance indicators (‘KPIs’) to measure
against our strategic ambitions.

See page 19 for further information on aur strategic ambitions:
Financial KPis

Revenue
Definition — Revenue is presented as per the financial statements, and
£m in accordgnce with IFRS 15

Revenue has decreased 28.3% from the prior year for total revenue
{2021 £647.2m; 2020: £902.8m) and 5.2% on a continuing
operations basis (2021: £642.3m; 2020: £677.5m). Despite revenue
growth in the broadcast TV and radio distribution business due to
inflation tinked contracts, the overall decrease for the year has been
driven by the expected reduction throughout the year due to the
successful completion of major works on the 700MHz Clearance
programme and lower pricing renewals on the main DTT multiplexes
mo0.l w00 2013 s This has been partially offset by new revenues related to use of
broadcast sites for telecommunications equipment and the ramp up
of activity on water metering contracts won in the prior year mainly
due to the sale of devices.

5000 600 0 HLt] i ERN SOC.0 i

EBITDA
Definition — EBITDA is 0 non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings
fm before interest, tax, deprecigtion and amartisation” and includes add-
bocks for certain items charged to operating profit that do not reflect
the underlying business performance. See page 28 for its
reconciliation to operating profit.

Total EBITDA has reduced 36.0% and 15.1% from continuing
operations (2021: £332.4m; 2020: £391.6m). The reduction in the
year has been driven by the decrease in revenues explained above
particularly around the 700MHz clearance programme and the
product mix with revenue increases driven in lower margin areas. A

10 N0 500 reduction in carporate costs due to a focus on cost management and
transformation including lower staff costs have partially offset the
mPOry o 2020 205 d decrease.

Operating rash fiow atter capira’ and

firranciat rvestmrent Definition — Operating cosh flow after capital investment activities
represents the cash generated after spending required to maintain or
£ expand its asset base. This is calcuiated os the net cash flow from

operations minus the net cash flow from capital expenditure and
financial investment. See page 29 for its reconciliation to net cash
flow from operations.

Cash generated has decreased 16.3% from £373.6m to £312.6m. This
has predominantly been driven by the decrease in cperations
following the sale of the telecom business. The decrease has been
partly reduced through a reduction in capital expenditure principally
owing ta lower expenditure on major cagital programmes such as
the 700MHz Clearance programme following successful completion
iC18 of major works partially offset by an increase in expenditure related
to the digital transformation programme for the business.
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Nan-hinancal KPis
700 MHz Clearance Programme

The major activties on the Clearance programme have successfully completed following the completion of the last two
clearance events by Aygust 2020

triies

The finai network milestone for the Smart energy metering contract, BMax {89.5% network coverage}, was achieved in
December 2020

Definition — Argiva strives to provide consistently high service levels
and look to manage and meonitor the total annuaf level of network
aveilability across Both TV and radio infrastructure as a percentage
acrass alf mufttiplexes

997.99% 99.99%

Result — Through careful management Argrva has consistently been

99.99% 99.98% able to achreve excellent levels of network availability
99.99% 99.99%
99.59% 99.99%

Making Argiva o great place (o work
Defimtion — The Group tokes part in the ‘Investors in People’
accreditation for which more than 16,000 UK businesses toke port.

Result — Argiva holds an Investor in People Gold award. This is the

Gold highest ievel in the Investors in Feople Recognition available. The
Gold achieverment of the Gold award is an outstanding recognition

Gold reflecting the commitment and hard work put in by colleagues across
Silver the business and commitment to our values, ¢lear focus on individual

and team objectives and team objectives aligned with business goals
and focus on continuous impravement.

Argiva has also been awarded an Investors in People ‘Health and
Wellbeing Good Practice Award” demonstrating our investment in the
health and wellbeing of colleagues across the business.
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Corporate Responsibility

Doing business the right way and sustainably is vital to Argiva. Argiva endeavours to conduct its business in a
way that benefits all our stakeholders including customers, suppliers, employees, shareholders and
communities in which we operates as well as creating a sustainable future for the business

Our ethics, values and hehaviours are weaved through every aspect of what we do.

Charity

Argiva continues to be a proud supporter of Cancer Research UK {CRUK) recognising them as our national
corporate charity. Activities are organised by Charity Champions across our sites with colleagues getting involved
in a variety of ways including;

- Participating in an Argiva organised event
- Matched funding if employees participate in any CRUK event
- Taking on a personal chalienge

Since the partnership began in 2019, Argiva and our employees have raised over £60,000 for CRUK. Our
partnership also extends beyond just fundraising — it is also about ensuring our colleagues are eguipped with
the support they may need should they, or their family, be affected by cancer.

Our major corporate sites also provide support to a range of chasen charities in their local communities. These
include organisations supporting adults with learning difficulties, homeless people, veterans and local food
banks.

We also understand that supporting a charity can be a very personal decision, so our matched funding scheme
enables colieagues to fundraise for their chosen local and national charities, from Diabetes UK and the NSPCC
to local community grojects, children’s clubs and sports teams.

Our colleagues are also able to provide support to a charity of their choosing through the ‘Give As You Earn’
scheme, working in partnership with the Charities Aid Foundation, for which we retained our Bronze Award in
2021. This allows colleagues to get tax relief on donations and the amount provided to charities through this
scheme has reached over £100,000 over the past three years.

People - living our purpose

We aim to create a workplace where people feel engaged, energised and respected, where they can do their
best, and look after their personal wellbeing, both in and out of work.

Wellbeing

The Group has an ongoing commitment to the health and emotional wellbeing of our people. Argiva runs an
annual event focusing on both organisational and personal resilience, which includes wellbeing sessions and
training courses. We 2lso have a network of mental health first-aiders, who are equipped to listen without
judgement, reassure and respond to colleagues, even in a crisis.

This activity is supplemented by further focused activity aligned with national weeks around mental health and
wellness. As well as these specific activities, our colleagues have access to a wealth of support through our
Employee Assistance Programme and our partnership with Cancer Research UK.

Health and Safety

Health and safety of individuals is vital, whether in the office or repairing an antenna on a 1,000ft mast, We are
committed to complying with applicable health and safety iegislation, and to continual improvement in achieving
a high standard of health, safety, and welfare in its operations and for all those in the organisation and others
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who may be affected by its activities. The Group operates a robust integrated management system that is
certified to 15014001, 15045001, 15030001 and 150270001 as well as offering training programmes covering
specific skills and general awareness. We have been a driving force in developing the Mast and Tower Safety
Group, run our own accredited IOSH Working Safely training scheme for our engineers and we collaborate with
the union BECTU on our annual employee safety conference.

Diversity and Inclusion

Valuing diversity and being inclusive is key. Qur diversity and inclusion programme ensures we continually focus
on what's needed for everyone to feelincluded and able to perform. We have moved beyond building awareness
around unconscious bias and are now supporting colleagues 1o understand the difference between intent and
impact.

Our Diversity Ambassadors have been instrumental in encouraging and engaging other workpiace communities.
We now have an active Women at Argiva netwark, a Working Families group, and a Neurodiversity network, so
we can listen, support and take opportunities to make lasting, tangible changes so our working practices are
even mare inclusive.

Environment

We continue to be aware of the impact our activities and our infrastructure may have on local communities. We
always strive to minimise the impact we make on sites across the country, especially at remote locations with
pratected wildlife; and we work closely with planning authorities and local communities to find the best
acceptable sofution for locations of masts and other infrastructure essential to keeping both rural and urban
communities connected.

Energy

Given the nature of the Group's activities, Energy cansumption is a key area of interest bath ecanomically and
environmentally. Qur energy palicy reflects the company’s commitments to improving energy efficiency by:

- Reducing energy cansumption
- {nvesting in energy efficient technofogy; and
- Monitoring carbon emissions

We are always looking at new and innovative ways of driving down our carbon footprint. Responsible
management of energy has a key role in minimising environmental impacts and is embedded within Argiva. We
investigate how emerging technologies and ingenious ways of working can help us and our customers become
environmentally friendly.

See page 59 in the Directors report for details on qur annual emissions.
Waste Management

The nature of our business means that we also have certain responsibifities particuiar to our industry. For
example, as new technologies emerge and legacy equipment is replaced, we look for the most environmentally
friendly ways to dispose of redundant hardware. We also consider the environmental risk of every investment
made.

Information Security

Due to the critical impartance of our sites and systems to the Group, our customers and, in some cases, as Critical
National Infrastructure, we take information security very seriousiy.

We hold certification to 1SO/IEC 27001:2013. 18027001 is an internationally recognised specification for an
information security management system (ISMS), a framewaork of policies and procedures that includes all legal,
physical and technical cantrols involved in an organisation’s information risk management processes. This allows
us to compete for new business which requires us to demonstrate the robustness of our security controls.
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Through independent review and accreditation, supported by internal monthly audits, we continue to
confidently demonstrate our commitment to security and secure working practices. We have held this
certification since 2013 and recertify every three years with recertification last given in May 2020.

We also hold Cyber Essentials certification. Cyber Essentials is a government-backed, industry-supported
scheme to help organisations guard against the most common cyber threats and demanstrate their commitment
to security. We have held this certification since 2016 and recertify annually.

Employees

The average number of persans employed by the Group during the year was 1,528 (2020: 1,864). Argiva
recognises the significant contribution of our employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and
engaging work environment.

Our policy is to provide equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, religion or political beliefs, disability or age. Like many engineering-based businesses
we recognise that Argiva has a higher proportion of men than women and we are working to address this with
the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion through our diversity and inciusion programme.

The table below provides a breakdown of the gender of Directars and employees as at 30 lune 2021:

i

7 Board of Directors ’ . 1/8% 11 /95%

Executive Committee 1/14% 6/86%
Group Employees 328 /21% 1,200/ 79%

The Group continues to address training and development requirements for employees at all levels within the
organisation. The Board also reviews future management requirements and successicn plans on an on-going
basis.

The Argiva Employee Board (‘AEB’) has continued throughout the year. The AEB is a democratically elected
Board that acts as a vaice for employees across Argiva and provides a clear and direct link between the Group's
employees and the Executive Committee. The AEB continues to meet on a monthly basis to discuss key matters
such as performance management, or efficiencies and process to develop responsive action plans. Furthermore,
the AEB (as well as the Executive Committee} interacts with representatives of BECTU (the Broadcasting,
Entertainment, Cinematograph and Theatre Union) regarding employee matters.

The Group’s employee forums provide an effective channel for communication and collective consultation
across the Group. They play an important role in enabling employees to help the Group manage change
effectively. The goals of each forum are to act as the formal consultative body for its part of the business within
Argiva, provide a voice to management on employee issues, initiate and support social activities, and promote
consultation and sharing information.

Significant emphasis is placed on employee communication. The Group intranet, ‘The Hub’, makes information
available to employees on all matters including performance, growth, and issues affecting the industry. The
embedded values “Ingenious, Straightforward, and Collaborative”, continue to form the fundamental basis of
all Argiva business conduct and communication.

Argiva wants all our employees to benefit from our success and growth as a business. The annual bonus scheme
recognises the importance of high performance and is designed to reward employees for achieving targets and
continuous improvement in overall perfarmance, in line with our values and strategy. The scheme takes into
account the targets that have been set by the Group. The Group must achieve a minimum EBITDA and operating
cash performance before 3 bonus becomes payable which is then calculated based on these financial KPls. The
bonus payment for the 2021 financial year is expected to be made in October 2021. In addition, certain members
of our senior maragement participate in a long-term incentive plan which is typically 3 years in duration and is
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designed to recognise the value of strategic initiatives being undertaken by the Group during the longer-term.
As with the annua! bonus scheme, the Group must achieve a minimum threshold of financial performance before
a bonus becomes payable under the long-term incentive plan which is then calculated based upon the 3-year
Group financial KPls of EBITDA and operating cash performance. All such arrangements are cash-based incentive
schemes which operate against documented performance targets and are reviewed at least annually by the
Remuneration Committee (which comprises members of the Board of Directors).

Gender Pay Gap

The fuli annual gender pay gap report is available on the company website, The latest report has shown a mixed
picture for the gender pay gap for the reporting period with an improvement in the main but an increase in the
median pay gap and includes details on why we have a pay gap, the reasons for the increase in the year and the
actions we are taking to address the issue.

Modern Slavery Act

Argiva is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part of our business. The supplier Code of Conduct reflects the commitment to acting ethically and with
integrity in all business relationships and to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure
slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere in our supply chains. The full statement is included
on page 40 and is also available on the company website at www.argiva.com.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

In conjunction with the UK Bribery Act 2010, the Group has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees which
incorporates all its anti-corruption policies and procedures. The policies apply to all Argiva employees employed
on both a permanent and temporary basis. The Code of Conduet aisa sets out the policies and procedures on
the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitality.

Taxation

The Group’s approach to tax is to ensure compliance with all legal and statutory obligations. Argiva is committed
to maintaining a transparent and constructive working relationship with HM Revenue & Customs and with focal
tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The total contribution to UK tax receipts including
business rates and NI paid by both Argiva and employees, totalled £65.4m for the financial year {2020: £92.6m).

The Argiva Group is a primarily UK based infrastructure group. There are some trading operations outside of the
UK, however these generate less than 1% of operating profit and there are no tax planning activities taken which
seek to reduce the Group’s UK profits or revenues by transferring revenue or profit out of the UK. The Group's
small overseas trading entities deal directly with customers in their area of residence and fulfil their tax
requirements in the local jurisdictions.

This report was approved by the Board on XX September 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

kS ——

Mike Parton

21 September 2021
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Companies {(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 {the “Regulations”), requires companies that meet
certain thresholds to report on the Directors’ application of their section 172 duty to promote the success of the
Company, as set out in the Companies Act 2006, along with stakeholder and employee engagement.

Section 172 Statement

The Companies Act 2006 sets out a set of general duties owed by directors to a company, including a list of
matters to which directors must have regard, which are set out in 5,172{1){a)} to {f). During F¥21, in continuing
to exercise their duties, the Directors have had regard for these matters, as well as other factors, in considering
proposals from the Executive Committee and continuing to govern the Company on behalf of our shareholders.

Conseguence of any decision in

-

( Str'ategic cnlre'rview , 19-20‘

the long-term
Interests of employees Employee Engagement 39
People - living our purpose 34 (Corporate Responsibility)
Employees 36
Fostering relationship with Stakeholder Engagement Below
suppliers, customers and others Business Update 21-25
Impact of operations on the Environment 35
community and the environment Energy Consumption and Waste 35
management
Charity 34
Maintaining high standard of Governance 43-47
business conduct Health & Safety 34

Modern Slavery Act, Anti-Bribery 41
& Corruption

Acting fairly between members Stakeholder Engagement Below

Accountability 56

Stakeholder Engagement Statement

Throughout the year, the Board has continued to ensure engagement with relevant stakeholders both in day
to day business and as part of key developments this year such as COVID-19. Examptles of the way in which this
engagement has taken place are set out in the table below.

Employées

Regulatory Bodies

Investors

Customers

Please see our Employee Engagement Statement below and Corporate

Responsibility statement (pages 34-37) for full details

We have good relationships with representatives in all relevant regulatory
bodies and engage regularly with Ofcom; the Department for Culture, Media
and Sport {DCMS); the Department for Business Enterprise and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS), as we!l as manitoring relevant developments with Ofwat and
Ofgem as regulators of customers of our Utilities business, We participate in
consultations and consult with government departments and regulators when
setting strategy and making decisions that affect industry generally; during the
2021 financial year this has included working closely with regulators during the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Quarterly reports to investors are published on our website and available to all;
an annual investor call is held, in which we review our annual results and invite
questions from investors. We worked closely with our investars in relation to
the sale of our Telecoms business to secure their ongoing positions.

Our relationships with our customers are very impartant to us, and we maintain
regular contact through account managers; Executive Committee members; and
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where approgriate aur Chairman. As part of COVID-19 we have saught to
understand and support customers who have heen affected and ensure
continued delivery of services.

Suppliers Our Pracurement team aversees supplier relationship management, with a

category management structure so that employees have relevant expertise for
each supplier. We work clasely ta ensure pasitive relationships, seeking to agree
fair terms and conditions and ensure timely payment, through adherence to and
reporting on the Prompt Payment Code.

Shareholders Sharehotder Representatives on the Board report back to shareholders on the

husiness and take their interests into account when making decisions, while
operating in accardance with their Companies Act duties. The Group's corporate
governance specifies a number of categories of decision which are Shareholder
Reserved Matters, ensuring that the decisions affecting shareholders are subject
to necessary regulations of all shareholders. This governance was followed
when agreeing and implementing the sale of the Telecoms business and
associated investment decisions.

Stakeholders As part of our infrastructure projects, we engage with planning authorities and

lacal communities to foster positive relationships. Argiva's charitable
engagement also seeks 1o support communities local to the areas in which it
operates.

Employee Engagement Statement

1.

Information

Regular all company updates are provided to all employees via Argiva’s Hub (intranet) and email
updates; Management have conducted company-wide live broadcasts through the year to update
employees on performance, strategy and other key developments; with oppertunities for employees
to ask questions in real time.

Consultation

Argiva has active union representations through the Broadcasting Entertainment Communications and
Theatre Union (BECTU); strategic decisions which may affect employees (including business change;
pay; and terms and conditions) are discussed with BECTI representatives in advance of action being
taken. Similar engagement also takes place with the Argiva Employee Board [AEB), which is elected by
employees, and their feedback and views are taken into account when making decisions affecting the
woarkforce, [for example in setting timescales and the content of communications).

{nvalvement

Employees participate in annual bonus schemes which are based upon performance of the business
throughout the year, encouraging employees to contribute to the success of the business. The Group’s
values of Ingenious and Collaborative encourage new ideas and fostering strong relationships across
the organisation, supporting averall performance of the business.

Common Awareness

Financial and economic factors affecting the business are described to employees throughout the year
during Management broadcasts; regular email communications with business updates and through the
Argiva Hub.

39



Argiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2021

Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

Overarching Statement
This statement sets out the steps we are implementing to combat slavery and human trafficking. We remain
committed to further improving our practices in the future to combat slavery and human trafficking.

Organisation’s Structure

We are a communications infrastructure and media services provider, operating at the heart of the broadcast
and satellite markets. We're at the forefront of network solutions and services in the digital world. We provide
much of the infrastructure behind television, radio and satellite communications in the UK and have a presence
in Ireland, mainland Europe, Asia and the USA.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2021, Argiva Limited and its subsidiaries, Argiva Muxco Limited and
Argiva Smart Metering Limited were part of the Argiva Group with head offices in the UK and over 1,300
employees. We operate in the UK, Europe, Asia and the USA.

Argiva Limited ({including its subsidiaries), Argiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited each have
an annual turnover of in excess of £36 million.

Our Supply Chains

The Argiva Procurement team works in partnership with our suppliers, ensuring we meet our internal customer
needs. The Argiva values of Ingenious, Straightforward and Collaborative are core to how we interact with
suppliers whether a high-volume preferred supplier or one-time only supplier.

We have an exceptionally diverse range of services and goods that are required by the business and sourced by
our Procurement team including:

*  Transmission — Argiva has numerous transmission sites throughout the UK;

e Construction — Argiva undertakes a broad range of construction activities from small changes to the
construction of new transmission towers;

s Maintenance & Repairs;

« [Tsoftware and managed services;

»  Satellite Capacity; and

s Corporate facilities (including corporate sites, stationery, recruitment, legal and professional fees).

Our Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking

We are commitied to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part our business. Suppliers are required to comply with our Supplier Code of Conduct, which reflects our
commitment to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and
enforcing effective systems and controls to ensure slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere
in cur supply chains.

Due Diligence Process for Slavery and Human Trafficking
As part of our initiative to identify and mitigate risk we:
* Aimtoidentify and assess potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
*  Tryto mitigate the risk aof siavery and human trafficking occurring in our business and our supply chains;
«  Monitor potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
*  Where possible we build long standing relationships with suppliers and make clear our expectations of
their business behaviour;
e Expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and have their own suitable anti-
slavery and human trafficking policies and processes; and
* Encourage the reporting of concerns and support the protection of whistleblowers.
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Supplier Adherence to aur Values
We have zero tolerance to slavery and human trafficking. We expect all those in our supply chain ta comply with
those values and our Supplier Code of Conduct.

Qur Procurement team, reporting into our CFQ, is responsible for promoting and ensuring compliance with the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 as part of our supplier relationships.

Training

Ta ensure a high leve! of understanding of the risks of modern slavery and hurman trafticking in our supply chains
and our business, all Directors and members of the Executive Committee have been briefed on the subject and
we continue to assess training needs for all relevant members or our staff.

Our Effectiveness in combating Slavery and Human Trafficking
We will use the following key performance indicators (KPIs) to measure how effective we have been to ensure
that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any part of our business or supply chains:
«  Use of robust supplier selection process including supplier questionnaires and compliance with Argiva’s
Supplier Code of Conduct; and
e Use of our payroll systems to ensure that purchase orders and payments to suppliers are limited to
those wha comply with our standards.

Steps taken during the financial year to 30 June 2021
in the past financial year, we have taken the following steps to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not
taking place in our supply chains, and in any part of our own business:

al We have continued to implement a qualification process for all of our suppliers, using our e-
procurement system. This process includes background checks and either (aj confirmation of
acceptance of the Argiva Supplier Code of Conduct (which covers modern slavery and human
trafficking); or (b} demanstration that the Supplier has its own equivalent policies covering modern
slavery and human trofficking. Purchase Orders cannot be placed with new suppliers before the
confirmation has been given;

b) The migration to a new version of Oracle financial systems has presented an opportunity to further
reduce our number of trading suppliers, and we are working to a pool of approximately 600 suppliers
on go-live of the upgraded systems (this figure has reduced from >2,300 in 2018);

¢} We have introduced a new e-learning system for colleagues, using LinkedIn Learning, which includes
content on modern slavery;

dj We have refreshed our “Speak Up” reporting website and telephione tine to enable people ta notify
concerns. These are overseen by the Internal Audit function and regular updates given to the Group's
Audit & Risk Committee.

Statement

This statement is made pursuant to section 54(1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and constitutes Argiva Limited,
Argiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited's slavery and human trafficking statement for the
financial year ending 30 lune 2021,

Note: The signed statement is avadiable an the Company website at www.argiv@d.com
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

Ownership

The Company is owned by a consortium of shareholders comprising Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
(48%), Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 1! {25%), plus other Macquarie managed fund {1.5%), Health
super Investments (5.5%]), IFM Giobai infrastructure Fund (14.8%] and Motor Trades Association of Australia
{5.2%). There is no ultimate controliing party of the Company, as defined by (AS 24 ‘Related parties’.

in accordance with 1AS 24, there are two investor companies which are related parties with the Group, by virtue
of significant shareholding in the Group:

¢ Frequency infrastructure Communications Assets Limited ('FICAL’} (48%]), a company controlled by
Canada Pension Plan Investment Board. The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board is a professional
investment management organisation in Toronte which invest the asset of the Canada Pension plan.
The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board was incorporated as a federal Crown corporation by an Act
of Parliament in December 1997,

*  Macquarie Eurapean Infrastructure Fund It 'MEIF I} {25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquarie Group. Macguarie Curopean Infrastructure Fund il is a wholesale investment fund focusing
on investments in high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe. Macquarie Group Limited is
fisted in Australia {ASX:MQG ADR:MQBKY).

Argiva Board of Directors

The Group's Board of Directors is comprised of ten Directors representing our sharehoider consortium as well
as two members of the Executive Committee. The following Board members were in office during the year and
up 1a the date of the signing of the annual report and financial statements.

Board Committee Membership

A — Audit and Risk Committee

G — Governance and Nomination Committee
R — Remuneration Committee

O — Operational Resilience

Bold — Committee Chair

Mike Parton, Chairman and Governance and Nomination Committee Chair

Mike brings a wealth of experience from his background in the telecoms and technology
industry. Mike started his career as a Chartered Management Accountant, working for a
number of UK technology companies including 1CL, GEC, STC and Marconi, Mike has held
the roles of CEP of Marconi plc. Chairman of Damovo Group and Chairman of Tele2 AB.

In addition to his role at Argiva, Mike is currently also Chairman of TDC Group and a trustee
of a young people’s charity, Grit.

A G R
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Paul Donovan, Chief Executive Officer

Prior to his appointment to Chief Executive Officer, Paul acted as a non-executive director
on the Argiva Board.

Paul has over 20 years’ experience in senior executive roles across the technology, media
and telecommunications sectors. Between 2014 and 2016 Paul led the transformation of
Europe’s leading cinema operator, Odeon and UCI Cinemas Group, ahead of its successful
sale to AMC Theatres. Paul’s leadership led to innovations in pricing, digital marketing and
guest experience which laid the foundations for improvements in business performance
and public perception.

Prior to this Paul was CEO of lrish Telecoms Group eir. His background also includes senior
exerutive appointments with a number of significant global organisations including
Vodafone, Cable & Wireless, One20ne and Optus as well as senior commercial rofes at 8T,
Apple Computers, Coca-Cola and Schweppes Beverages and Mars Inc.

Sean West, Chief Financial Officer

Sean was appointed Chief Financial Officer in September 2019, having joined Argiva in
2015 as Director of Treasury and Corporate Finance and appointed Interim Chief
Financial Officer in May 2019.

Sean has a background in all areas of corporate finance and financing, and as Director
of Treasury and Corporate Finance was responsible for all aspects of the Group’s capital
structure.

Priar to joining Argiva, Sean held senior corporate finance and treasury positions at the
immediate Capital Group {ICG} and LandSec and brings a wealth of experience across a
range of industries and financial markets.

Appointed by IFM Investors and Motor Trades Association of Australia (joint appointment)

Sally Davis, Director and Remuneration Committee Chair

With over 30 years in the TMT sector Sally has held a number of senior product,
strategy and chief executive roles including being a former Chief Executive of BT
Wholesale, ane of four operating divisions of BT. Prior to this, Sally had an early
product management career at Mercury Communications hefore becoming a director
at NYNEX during its merger with Bell Atlantic to become Verizon.

Sally is also a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Telenor and is Chairman of
Leonard Cheshire.
R

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited

Mike Darcey, Director and Operational Resilience Chair

Mike has over 25 years” experience in the technology, media and telecommunications
industry with numerous positions held ranging from CEQ of News International to COO
of British Sky Broadcasting Group. He has also provided strategic advisory servicesto a
range of clients in the media industry.

Mike has served or is currently serving on Boards including Dennis Publishing (UK} Ltd
(Chairman), M247 {Chairman), Home Retail Group (Senior Independent Director) and
Sky New Zealand (Director). He is also Chairman of British Gymnastics and Senior
Expert Advisor to MTM Consulting.

0 G
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Batiste Ogier, Director

Batiste is a Senior Principal in the Portfolio Value Creation at CPP Investments. He has
responsibitity for oversight of CPP Investments’ global Infrastructure and Power &
Renewables portfolios including helping establish each imvestment's asset
management priorities. In his role, Batista is also a Director on the Board of Renewable
Power Capital, a renewable energy investment platfarm he helped found in 202G and
is Board representative for CPP Investments at Anglian Water. Prior to joining CPP
investments, he was a Director in the Infrastructure team at First State Investments,
during which time he was a member of the Supervisory Board of the Coriance Group
and a Board representative for FSt at Anglian Water.

Neil King, Director

Neil runs the European infrastructure business at CPP Investment Board. He has over
twenty-five years of experience in the infrastructure market, including ten years at 3i
as a founding partner in its infrastructure investment business befare joining CPPIB in
201S.

Neil is also a Non-Executive director at Interparking S.A., a European car parking
business which is in CPPIB’s infrastructure investment portfalio.
G R

Peter Adams, Director {alternate)
Peter is a Principal in the Infrastructure group at CPP Investment Board, based in
tondon.

Prior to joining CPP Investment Board in September 2010, Peter was with the Boston
Consulting Group, where he advised clients in the U.S., Canada and Europe on
strategy and operations.

Appointed by Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund I}

Nathan Luckey
Nathan was reappointed to the Board on 1July 2021.

Nathan is a Senier Managing Director in Macguarie Infrastructure and Real Assets
{MIRA), and leads MIRA's Digital Infrastructure team in Europe. Nathan holds a
number of non-executive directorship roles for companies within MIRA's
investment portfolio. He is & qualified Mechanical Engineer, with expertise across
the telecommunications, media, transpertation and utilities sectors.

Mark Braithwaite, Director

Mark is a Senior Managing Director in Macguarie Infrastructure and Real Assets.
Mark was previously Chief Financial Officer of Thames Water, the UK's Jargest water
and wastewater services company. Prior to joining Thames Water, Mark was
Finance Director of the customer and energy divisions at EDF Energy plc, and before
that held a number of senior Finance positions at Seboard plc.

Mark has other non-executive directorship roles for companies within MIRA's
investment portfolio and is also a trustee of Leadership through Spert & Business, a
UK social mobility and employability charity.

A G R
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Appointed by IFM Investors

Christian Seymour, Director

Christian is Head of Infrastructure at IFM Global Infrastructure Fund, responsible for
the business expansion in Europe and oversight of IFM’s existing European asset
portfalio, of which Codan Trust is an investment vehicle.

A G R 0

Max Fieguth, Director (allernale)

Max is responsible for asset management of existing investments for IFM Global
Infrastructure Fund, as well as supporting the execution of infrastructure
transactions. Prior to joining IFM Investors, Max worked as a Consultant in the
Operations Practice at McKinsey and prior to that at Bechtel on 2 number of
infrastructure projects. He holds a Masters in Mechanical Engineering from Imperial
College London, an MBA from INSEAD and is a Chartered Engineer with the Institution
of Mechanical Engineers in the UK.

Independent Board Advisor

Frank Dangeard, Independent Board Advisor and Audit and Risk Committee Chair

Frank Dangeard resigned as a Director on 1 July 2021. He still attends Board and Audit
and Risk Committee meetings as an Independent advisor to the Board.

in the telecom, media and technology sector, Frank has held various positions at
Thomson S.A., including Chairman & CEO, and was Deputy CEO of France Telecom.
He served on the boards of SonaeCom and Orange, and was Deputy Chairman of
Telenor, He is currently of NortonLifeLock (ex-Symantec, US) and is on the board of
HIS (Cayman). In the financial sector, he was a Managing Director of SG Warburg and
Chairman of 5G Warburg France. He served on the boards of Crédit Agricole CIB and
Home Credit. He is currently on the board of NatWest Group (UK}, and Chairman of
NatWest Markets (UK). Frank also held board positions at EDF, RPX and various listed
and non-listed companies in Europe, the US, India and the Middle-East.

A 0]
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Executive Committee

(also includes the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer on pages 44)

Shuja Kahn
Chief Commercial
Officer

- Joined Argiva in January 2020
as Chief Operating Gfficer,
moving to Chief Commercial
Officer role in July 2020.

- 20 years in leadership roles
within telecoms, media and
broadcasting. Most recently
Chief Commercial Officer at
Cable and Wireless

- Qther senior positions at
Liberty Global.

Vivian Leinster
Chief People
Officer

- loined Argiva in fune 2020

- Extensive experience in
people, organisation and
cultural changes.

- Previous positions including
Chief People Officer at MS
Amlin and Bupa UK.

Alex Pannell
Executive Director, Commercial
Broodcast and Utifities

- loined Argiva in 2012,
appointed to the Executive
Committee in 2018 within
the Sateliite and Media
business.

Previously Director in BT
Wholesale.

Other previous positions at
Concert Communications.

B

:

Adrian Twyning
Chief of
Operations

- loined Argiva in March 2021
with experience in energy,
retail, health construction and
professional services.

- Previously Director of
Transformation at Dixons
Carphone

- Other senior positions at
British Gas and Brighton and
Sussex Hospitals NHS Trust

Clive White
Chief Technology and
Transformation Officer

- loined Arqiva in April 2018,

- Previous transformation
positions at RSA, Lloyds
Banking Group, Accenture,
AT&T Global Network and
BSkyB.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Argiva’s approach to risk management is as follows:

- Argiva recognises that the effective management of risk is essential to achieve our business objectives

- Arqiva adopts an Enterprise Risk Management (‘ERM’} approach, which is recognised as ‘best
practice’ for top performing companies

- Managing risk is a core responsibility of management at all levels and is a key component of
governance and compliance

- Argiva aims to embed risk management principles into the culture of the organisation

Enterprise wide management of risk is important for Argiva to meet our corporate objectives and for us to
protect future competitive advantage. The strategic importance of risk management is recognised by top
performing companies and is an important part of good corporate governance. Argiva subscribes to the
Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing our risk profile.

Arqiva has adopted 15031000 as its Enterprise Risk Management standard and ISO Guide 73 terminology.
Arqiva has also adopted the 150 27000 series for Information Security including ISO/IEC 27005 for Security Risk
Management which operates within the Argiva ERM Framework. Our statements and principles are linked to
our process through our risk management framework.
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The Executive Committee has responsibility for maintaining and updating their line of business risk register
which includes utilising the standardised approach to risk assessment and risk monitoring. The Group’s
centralised Internal Audit and Risk function provides training and support to ensure risks are captured
effectively and on a timely basis. The Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review
and consolidate the most significant business risks inte a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly
Executive Committee and Audit and Risk Committee meetings. The Executive Committee takes
recommendations for ensuring the risk management framework remains effective going forward.

Audit and Risk function / Audit
committee:
Independent business assurance
provided over the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal

Business Managemsant:

First defence is the day to day
controls and processes put in ploce
by management to identify risks

Senlor Executive Management:
Quarterly review of the corporate
risk register to include review of
risk management policies, setting
of risk appetite, monitoring

and develop mitigating actions.

compiiance and reporting of
significant risks to the Bogsd of
Directors.

controls and processes, and
the effectiveness of the risk
management framework.

Management has identified the following risks as the most significant business risks affecting the Group,

presented together with identified mitigating actions.

-

The COVID 19 health
pandemic is a risk to
demand and operational
capabilities

Argiva maintains regular
dialogue with customers and
other stakehalders with regard
to impact of the pandemic.

Management continue to raview
the working capital and liquidity
facilities available to the Group.
Argiva maintains an operational
Resilience team who monitor
|atest restrictions and guidelines
from the Government.

Business Continuity Plans are
established for each key site and
business area.

Discounts to local commercial
radio customers have been
extended during the year to
continue to support these
customers through the COVID-13
pandemic.

Financial liquidity is continually
monitored and reviewed with
regard to available facilities for
the Group. Post year end in July
2021, the Group has renegotiated
our available facilities with a new
£100.0m facility available until
2025.

Business Continuity Plans have
continued to be enacted with sites
adhering to government COVID
secure guidelines. Alternative
working arrangements and
technology to support these
arrangements have been enacted
to enable the continued
provisions of the Group’s services
and safe working conditions for
employees.
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Rad publicity damages
Argiva’s reputation and
customer and business
partner confidence and its
ability to do business as a
result of:

- A major event or
incident impacting ours
services,;

Untimely delivery on
major projects;
Repeated unexpected
service outages;
Security breach or cyber
attack on networks; or
Major network or
equipment failure or
obsolescence or inability
to configure to comply
with infarmation security
standards

1

'

Risk of incident causing
death or serious injury
during site works or
engineering.

Risk of mental health
issues as a result of
significant organisational
changes

Developments in
alternative broadcast
technologies, which
compete against the DTT
transmission business; or
the evalution of DAB
against Argiva's existing
analogue radio
transmission business.
Technical refresh in
machine-to-machine
markets impacting
potential obsolescence of
legacy systems.

Aryiva carefully engages with our
customers to ensure that project
milestones are carefully
managed and management
regularly reviews the progress of
all projects.

Through continuous
measurement of operational KPls
and addressing shortfalls in
performance through process
excellence the risk around
service reliability is carefully
managed.

The Group has in place a crisis
management plan for public
relations and external
communications to provide
support should there be any
major events. This is regularly
menitored and reviewed.
Cyber-attacks and trends in this
area are continually monitored.

The Group caontinues to invest in
our infrastructure.

Training and rescue skills courses
are required on an annual basis
for field employees, and rescue
kits are provided.

Argiva maintains and regularly
reviews our policy on workplace
safety and site security.

DTT retains the largest share of
broadcast transmission in the
UK, and IPTV remains
constrained by limited high
speed broadband uptake and
variable reliability leveis. In
addition, Argiva has mitigated
some of this risk by investing in
YouView TV Limited, a joint
venture formed to develop and
promote the DTT platform
together with involvement in
Freeview Play.

Argiva has continued to achieve
our target result for ‘network
availability’, achieving over 99%.

The Group has completed the
700MH:z programme during the
year ahead of schedule.

The Group maintains [1SO27001
certification regarding information
security and halds periodic
reviews of Lhe security
environment and training to
employees.

The Business Continuity Group
continues to meet regularly and
will test and roll out the Disaster
Recovery Ptan.

There has been continued capital
expenditure in the year to
improve infrastructure.

The Group has continued with our
digital transformation programme
with Finance transformation and
implementation of a new Oracle
ERP system and IT service portal
during the year.

Argiva has maintained compliance
with OHSAS518001 regarding
safety management.

Mental health and wellness
continue to be of focus. Argiva
runs annual events focusing on
personal resilience including
wellbeing sessions and training
courses. The Group also has a
network of mental health first
aiders across the organisation.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders for the
review into timeframes for full
analogue switchover. Upgrades to
our DAB network in recent years
mean Argiva continuesto be in a
strong position to support future
switchover.

The new strategic priorities of the
Group for the next 10 years puta
focus on the sustainable future of
the business including the

development of solutions for new
and emerging sectors to make the
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Change in government
plans, policy or priorities
coulid fead to unforeseen
changes in scope on majar
engineering programmes
and licencing.

information, networks and
systems infrastructure may
be subjected to cyber
security threats leading to
a loss or corruption of
data, penalties and
impacting the operational
capacity of Arqgiva.

Critical transmission
structures or IT
infrastructure supporting
key operational processes
could fail leading to
operationat outages.

The scale and complexity
of Argiva’s major
pragrammes bear an
inherent risk of unforeseen
delays through the supply
chain and therefore

. challenges to delivery.

Argiva maintains regular
dialogue with our stakeholders
to ensure the delivery of our
programmes are efficient, timely
and to specification. Where
specification changes occur,
Argiva provides a detailed
assessment of the potential costs
of the scope change and seeks an
informed recovery of these costs
through mechanisms in our
contracts.

Argiva’s assets and operations
remain predominantly in the UK
and therefore our business has
minimal exposure to the
changing relationships with
imternational markets.
Additionally, we expect the
infrastructure Argiva provides to
continue to be demanded and
that these services evolve as
markets and consumer tastes
evalve,

The Group maintains an
150270001 certification
regarding information security,
which includes Cloud Security
Services. Employee training on
information security is
mandatory and quarterly reviews
are undertaken by external
consultants ta examine the
robustness of the security
environment.

Argiva ensures data is regularly
backed up and Business
Continuity Plans have been
established for each key site and
each business area, A Business
Recovery Working Group meets
regularly to stress test these
plans and continually review the
Group’s approach to disaster
recovery and operational
resifience.

Argiva maintains a robust
oversight of the delivery of our
majar programmes. This includes
identifying the key personnel and
resources required for delivery
and working closely with its
suppliers and customers to

most of our infrastructure and
expertise.

Argiva has successfully agreed
scope and change requests on qur
smart energy metering
programme with our customer
demonstrating the customer’s
continued focus en network roli
out.

Argiva has continued engagement
with Ofcom regarding licensing
arrangements.

Debt markets have continued to
be monitored for accessibility and
open dialogue maintained with
ratings agencies. Evolving
commercial negotiations are
clasely monitored.

Argiva has implementad detection
and prevention solutions on
networks.

Argiva has continued to pass our
quarterly security reviews and has
consequently retained 1SQ
certification.

Communication and training have
been maintained with employees
to ensure awareness of potential

cyber security threats.

Site inspections are completed
with a focus an older sites and
structural maintenance plans have
been implemented.

Business Continuity Plans have
been enacted through the COVID-
19 pandemic with keyworks on
sites able to continue the
seamless delivery of cur
operational services whilst
adhering to COVID secure
workplace guidelines.

Argiva has completed the 700MHz
Clearance programme during the
year in line with contractual
milestones.

The Group's smart metering

communication network in the
North of England and Scotland
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Customer relationships
operations and project
delivery could be damaged
if there were significant
loss of people with critical
skills and knowledge
unique to Argiva's
competitive position.

cnsure thal Lhese requirements
are sufficiently available.

Argiva recognises the
importance of our people and
seeks to make Arqiva a
rewarding and enjoyable place to
work. The Group cperates a
competitive annual bonus plan
for all employees and a long-
term incentive plan for our
leadership team. Additionally,
the Group operates formal
retention and succession
planning in knowledge-critical
areas of the business.

pages 61-62.

now covers 99.5% of premises.
Argiva continues to support the
DCC on the meter roll out
programme,

Argjiva has continued to focus on
supporting individuals with
increased support and training for
new managers and emerging
talent.

Regular meetings are held to
identify critical issues and ensure
timely intervention. Retention
plans have continued to be
implemented for key individuals
particularly through significant
organisational changes that have
taken place across the workforce
in the year.

Details of the financial risks and details of mitigating factors are set out in the Directors’ report on
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Argiva Group Limited {'AGL'), registered company number 05254001, (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries {“the Group”} submit the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements (“the
financial statements”) in respect of the year ended 30 June 2021.

The Company is a holding company with an investment in a group of operating companies, financing companies
and other holding companies.

The Directors’ report for the Company is set out on page 130.

Wates Corporate Governance Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2021, under The Companies [Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, Argiva has
applied the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies (as published by the Financial
Reporting Council {(FRC) in December 2018 and available on the FRC website).

Companies are able to adopt the Wates principles as an appropriate framework when making a disclosure
regarding corporate governance arrangements. We have adopted the disciosure in our 2021 Annual Report and
Financial Statements and we set out below how the principles have been applied over the past year.

PRINCIPLE ONE - PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP - An offectose Doord promiotes the purpose 0f v company, gngd

PASLEES Dol Fs values, strategy amd Cuture alige wri that plroose

Purpose/focus and activities during the year.

The divestment of the Group’s Telecoms business was successfully completed in early July 2020. Subsequently,
the focus of the Board and Executive Committee during the year has been to {ead Argiva through an uncertain
Covid 19 period and to re-set the business’ purpose with a particular emphasis on its core broadcast, media
networks and utifities businesses and its customers. The following items were the key areas of focus during the
year:

ftem Summary _‘
Headline purpose and The development of a new and updated purpose for Argiva — which is “Enabling a
strategy matters switched-on world to flow” - and also the Vision 2031 work which has brought our

purpose, our vision and our strategy together has been the focus for building a
sustainabie future for Argiva. The Board has averseen these matters alongside the
develgpment and adoption of a detailed and robust long-term plan for the business
with appropriate cast and investment assumptions which now underpin the
business. This was the first long-term plan for the ‘new’ business, following the
divestment of the Telecoms business to Celinex which was completed in July 2020.
Capital structure Following the divestment of the Telecoms business, the Board has overseen a
restructuring of its capital structure through the repayment of a significant portion
of its external debt and also the rationalisation of its derivatives positipns
assaciated with that debt. Anindicative credit upgrade was confirmed by the rating
I agencies at the end of the year.

Customers Argiva is a smaller and less complex business post the Telecoms divestment, and
the Board has sought to ensure senior engagement with key customers and
stakeholders to cement working relationships, share Argiva’s new purpose and to
open up further oppartunities for collaboration.

in addition, a significant customer engagement survey was carried out in May 2021.
This provided valuable insights in to Argiva’s performance, what it needs to do to
maintain its position in certain areas, and what it needs to do to prepare for the
future.
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Integrated organisation

The Board has overseen the implementation of an integrated organisational design
whose purpose is to more directly and effectively serve our customers and ensure
alignment across our functions with the business” purpose and direction.

People & Culture

A particular focus has been an ensuring the right levels of skills and experience
amongst our employees which was impartant to detiver Argiva’s new purpose in
the new organisational design. The Board has overseen a company wide
restructuring and redundancy programme which was carried out during the year.
This resuited in a significant number of changes in the employee mix — with a
number of individuals leaving the business, others being successful in being
appointed to new roles, and also a significant recruitment exercise to fill vacant
roles.

A new senior leadership group was formed in the summer of 2020, This group has
benefitted from significant investment through personal and leadership
development activities throughout the year. The leadership group has been key to
certain Culture transformation initiatives over the course of the year and bringing
to fruition a target culture blueprint for the business.

In addition, the implementation of our post-pandemic “Work. Life. Smarter.”
practices has started and will continue to be rolied out. The intention is 1o enable
a migration to a hybrid home/office working model for our people.

Operational
performance

The operational performance of the business has been closely monitored by the
Board as part of the regular Board meeting agendas. In particular, the impact of
Covid 19 on the performance of the business has been considered on a more
frequent basis, and the relevant operational risks associated with Covid 19
continue to be carefully managed. In addition, the global component shortage has
had an impact on meter supply schedules and this has been frequently considered
by the Board and senior management.

Governance

A number of appointments/changes have been made to the Group’s executive
committee during the year. [In addition to the business’ new integrated
organisational design, a number of improverents and updates have been made to
the business’ internal governance structures and delegated authorities.

Covid 19

The principal aims of the Board in its response to the ongoing Covid 19 pandemic
were to ensure the safety of its employees and assist individuats with the evolving
jockdown situations and ‘working from home’ realities, and also maintain
operatianal capability and delivery to the Group’s customers. tn addition, the
Board continued to oversee the Group’s engagement with its most affected and
key customers.

Transformation

The Board has continued to oversee the programme to upgrade the Group’s IT,
systems and processes ta enhance operational capability and bring efficiencies to
the Group’s operations.

Values and culture

Argiva’s values are embedded throughout the organisation, and adherence to them forms part of employees’
performance reviews and reward structure. Independent surveys of both employee and customer engagement
are undertaken. Engagement with BECTU is described under Principle 6 {Stakeholders) below. The Group’s
People & Culture team monitors absenteeism rates and precesses are also in place to encourage and monitor
exit interviews. These form part of matters reported upon to the Operational Resilience Committee, which

reports in to the Board.
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PRINCIPLE TWO - BOARD COMPOSITION - Ettective board composthon reguives an effective ¢hain aed v balance
of skis, backyrounds, experence and knowledne with indreduul directors howng suffictent capuoity to make o
the company.

Laluahie contobation Tae see of a hoard showld be guided by the scale and complexity o

Chair
The Group’s corporate governance structure creates a clear separation between the role of the Chair and that
of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chair (who is independent of the Graup’s Shareholders) is a highly experienced business executive having
held many senior executive roles in the technology and telecoms sectors. The Chair has actively encouraged
open debate and discussion in the appropriate forums including main Board meetings which are scheduled to
take place at least six times per year, and also at Board sub-committee meetings {those committees heing the
Audit & Risk Committee, Nominations & Governance Committee, Operational Resilience Committee, Capital
Structure Committee and the Remuneration Committee).

Balance and diversity

The Board has deep and relevant experience which has provided invaluable external industry input to assist
more effective decision-making in relation to a number of key matters brought before the Board. The Group
operates in a number of diverse and complex markets which require the Board to have a detailed understanding
of the relevant sector in order to arrive at informed decisions.

Argiva is actively working with Inclusive Employers in relation to diversity and inclusion. The Group recognises
that there is further work to do in this area and continues to promote relevant initiatives. Page 36 of the Annual
Report provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees.

Size and structure

The size and structure of the Board remains under periodic review so that it is best organised to meet the needs
and challenges of the Group. In terms of Board size, a balance has been struck between ensuring Shareholders
are adequately represented via their nominated Directors but also identifying directors with relevant industry
experience to be appeointed together with the Group’s CEQ and CFO (see pages 43-47 of the Annual Report for
full details of the composition of the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management). Whilst Frank
Dangeard, Mike Darcey and Sally Davis all originally joined Argiva as independent non-executive directors, each
of them were also Shareholder directors representing Macquarie, CPPIB and MTAA/IFM respectively in the year
to 30 June 2021.

We acknowledge that there is a relative fack of diversity on the Board. As part of the new appointments to the
Senior Leadership groups, improvements have bean made to broaden diversity and this will continue in the
future.

Effectiveness
The Group ungertook an extensive Board effectiveness/evaluation exercise in December 2020 using an external
online platform together with relevant diagnostics, and the results of the exercise were considered and
discussed at a meeting of the Nominations & Governance Committee and the Board of directors in February
2021. The key action recommendations from the exercise included the following:
- Argiva's sustainability activities should be an increasing priority that form part of the company’s value
creation and strategic objectives.
- Diversity & inclusion and sustainability matters will be a more prominent agenda item at relevant
committee meetings and also at the Board twice a year from FY22 onwards.
- Succession planning and talent review matters will be regular agenda items for the Nominations &
Governance Committee.
- The compaosition of the Board {and/or the potentia! for a Board observer or external advisor) would be
kept under review to ensure the right breadth of experience and input at the Board.
- Anincreased focus by the Audit & Risk Committee in appraising strategic risk factors and whistieblowing
matters.
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The Board has a programme of six principal meetings every year, with additional meetings arranged for key
projects, strategic matters or circumstances such as Covid 19, as may be reguired.

Accountability

Decisions which are within the remit of the Beard or Shareholders are set out in a Shareholders’ Agreement (as
Board Reserved Matters and Shareholder Reserved Matters). There is a comprehensive Delegation of Authority
policy which sets out the responsibilities that are delegated to the Executive and those decisions which must be
made at Board or Shareholder level. This policy was updated and a revised policy brought to the June 2021
Board meeting for approval. Typically, Board or Sharcholder Reserved Matters are raised at regular Board
meetings and written resolutions are obtained where otherwise required.

A Conflicts of Interest paper is maintained and regularly updated with details of Board or Shareholder conflicts.
Any conflicts which may compromise independent decision making would be raised by the Company Secretary
at the relevant Board meeting; a Director having a conflict is not entitied to discuss or vote on the relevant
matter, or to count in the quorum.

Committees

Five Board sub-Committees have been instituted. Pages 63-64 of the Annual Report provides an overview and
description of each of the Board sub-Committees comprising: Audit & Risk, Remuneration Committee,
Nominations & Governance and Operational Resilience. The Capital Structure Committee was established in
summer 2020, principally to oversee and recommend the activities associated with the restructuring of Argiva’s
capital structure through the repayment of a significant portion of its external debt and also the rationalisation
of its derivatives positions associated with that debt. The Capital Structure remains in place, its core focus being
the consideration and optimisation of Argiva’s capital structure. The Board sub-Committees promote effective
decision making and greater accountability and focus in relation to each of the areas covered by the respective
Board sub-Committees.

Integrity of information

The Board receives regular reports from the Executive and Senior Management on key matters for which the
Board has responsibility, including strategic projects; comprehensive financial reporting; key customer and
regulatory matters; updates on operational resilience (including physical and cyber security as well as health and
safety and environmental issues); details of major bids and perfermance of key contracts and market issues
faced by the Group as well as developments in technology and regulation.

The Groupn uploads papers to 2 board portal for ease of review and administration. Other than in exceptional
cases papers are submitted in advance and taken as read at Board meetings, allowing any presentations to focus
on highlighting key issues, discussion and dealing with questions. The Chairs of each of the Board Committees
are aware of the importance of their position and during FY20 they have each met (virtually) with key employees
of the Group to build relationships and gain direct access to those dealing with the day to day business of the
Group.
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Opportunity

The Group’s Beard maintains a focus on how the Group creates and preserves value over the long-term which
is principally achieved through a well-developed strategic and long-term planning process. The Board keeps its
strategy under review which provides a forum to present future business opportunities. Appropriate
governance mechanisms are in place to ensure that new business opportunities above a certain value are
considered and approved by the Board.
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Risk

The Group has a well-developed risk management process in place and continues to utilise its an online risk
assessment tool, which is used throughout the business (which is described on pages 49 of the Annual report).
The Group’s Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review and cansolidate the most
significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly Executive Committee and Audit
& Risk Committee meetings.

Arqiva’s key operational risks and mitigations are outlined in detail on pages 51-52 of the Annual Report.

Responsibilities
The Group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing its risk which has been approved
by the Group’s Audit & Risk Committee. This incorporates an internal control framework clearly defining roles
and responsibilities of those involved. Responsibilities include the following:
- The Group’s Executive Committee takes recommendations for ensuring the risk management
framework remains effective going forward;
- Processes are in place for managing the principal risks and uncertainties;
- Theinternai control framework {described on page 49 of the Group’s annual report) confirms that there
is a manitoring and review process in place to evaluate risks at both business unit and Board level.
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Remuneration

A consistent approach has been adopted in setting the level and structure af remuneration in relation to each
member of the Executive Committee to secure appropriate and fair levels of remuneration. Benchmarking and
advice from external remuneration consultants is obtained. Remuneration comprises of a number of elements
inciuding base salary, an annual bonus and a long-term incentive plan.

Page 37 of the Group’s annual report provides more detail and explains how remuneration is structured to
recognise high performance reward for achieving targets in line with the Group’s sustainable success and values.
This aligns with remuneration arrangements for the remainder of the organisation where every employee’s
remuneration is made up of a combination of base salary and annual bonus {which, again, is linked to personal
performance and achieving financial targets in line with the Group’s objectives). Following a review of the
Group’s remuneration structures by the new Chief People Officer, initiatives in the year to 30 June 2021 have
included new approaches to reward and incentives that underpin future cost savings while ensuring
transparency and alignment with shareholder objectives.

Policies

The Group has delegated remuneration matters to the Remuneration Committee {which is 2 committee of the
Board). The Remuneratian Committee operates in accordance with documented terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee is committed to take into account the pay and employment conditions of the Group's
wider warkforce when making recommendations in retation to Executive pay.

The Group's barnus and tong-term incentive plans are dacumented in writing and reviewed at ieast annually by
the Remuneration Committee and any payments made operate against documented performance targets.

in addition, the Remuneration Committee considers the company wide annual pay increase on an annuai basis.
As part of this process, the Remuneration Committee will assess increases against certain criteria including
taking into account other comparative pay metrics in the industry, discussions held with BECTU, the existing and
future financial capacity of the business, and also aligning with the long term sustainabie success of the
company. [nthe year to 30 june 2021, annual pay negotiations were concluded with BECTU with agreement to
g0 to a baffot of its members. This occurred in early July 2021 and agreement was reached on the business’
proposals.
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Stakeholders

The Group's key Stakeholders include its employees; customers; suppliers; debt investors; Shareholders;
pensions trustees; and regulatory and government bedies including Ofcom, DCMS and BEIS.  Senior
Management and the Strategy and Regulatory team work closely with industry and lobby groups and
representatives of the various regulatory bodies, and the Board is regularly briefed informally and formally on
developments. The value of good relationships with local communities, in the context of planning requirements
for example, is understood and focus is given to fostering these relationships. The Group provides reports to
investors and creditors as part of its listed debt obligations and conducts regular investor calls which give the
opportunity for debt investors to raise questions with the Group. The Group’s procurement operations function
actively undertakes reviews of its supplier base and to enhance its best practice in this field.

Workforce

Argiva communicates to its employees through regular email newsletters, updates over email directly from the
CEC and local messaging from the Executive Management. The CEO and Executive Management have also
conducted small listening groups in person where possible. However, due to the Covid 19 pandemic, the use of
live broadcasts and presentations streamed online (rather than roadshows} has continued and this has been
well received by employees. This has been done alongside interactive question functionatity which enables a
live dialogue with the workforce. Individual video interviews with members of the Executive Management have
also been publiished on the Argiva intranet. During the Covid 19 pandemic in particular, the Executive
Management team has been the principal conduit through which the Board has been able to assess workforce
considerations and related views for the purposes of their decision making processes.

The Group has active union representation from BECTU, as well as an elected Employee Board, and employee
forums throughout the different functions. The People & Culture team work closely with each of these bodies,
consulting on any proposed changes to terms; policies and processes; as well as seeking feedback on workplace
marale, culture and issues of concern or interest to the workforce. In the year to 30 June 2021, due to the
campany wide restructuring and redundancy programme, the interaction between Argiva, its Employee Board
and BECTU has been heightened. A constructive and pro-active dialogue was swiftly established between the
parties and a constructive relationship has been cemented as a result.

External impacts

The Group’s Corporate Responsibility statement sets out, on pages 34-37 of the Directors’ Report, a description
of the Group’s focus areas used to ensure that it acts responsibly, ethically and safely, from a Corporate;
Community; Employee; and Business perspective. The statement also includes a summary of the Group’s
approach to environmental factors,
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

Year ended
30 June 2020 (Restated)*

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and Year ended
energy use data for the period 1 30 June 2021
July 2020 to 30 June 2021

Energy consumption used to

75 290,282,567
calculate emissions (kWh) 222,357,758 ? ?
Energy consumption break down (kWh):

Gas 2,055,282 2,207,196

Electricity 215,261,826 279,439,417
S

Transport fuel 5,040,650 8,635,954

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes TCQ2e
Gas consumption
Owned transport {fleet)

Total Scope 1 ) | 1,496 1,963

R

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes TCO2e .

Purchased electricity

Market Based 639 -
Location Based 46,471 65,148
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes TCO2e

Buf‘nvness tre?vel in employee owned 179 387
vehicles / hire

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes TCO2e
Market Based 2,264

Location Based 48,096 I 67,498 B

Intensity Ratio

Year ended Year ended
30 june 2021 30 June 2020

Intensity ratio of Total TCQ2e / £m

.49
revenue — market-based method 3

Intensity ratio of Total TCO2e / £m
revenue — location-based method

7431

* Prior year balances have been restated te take into account bills received for the 2020 financial year after the signing date
of the prior year financial statements.

Energy Efficiency Action taken

Video conferencing capability has been vastly improved through the introduction of more stable software and
efficient technoiogy enabling the opportunity from warking from the home environment a more sustainable
option negating the need for business travel and personal commuting.

LED lighting has continued to be deployed in both office and meeting room refurbishments across the
corporate and technical estate.

A significant proportion of the reduction in electricity consumption is attributable to the sale of the telecoms
division to Cellnex, however a number of energy efficiencies were identified during the COVID -19 pandemic in
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particular reducing office heating, lighting and maintenance obligations across the estate reducing business
travel.

Argiva continue to purchase over 99% of its energy consumed in the transmission networks and buildings
{office and technical) from renewable energy supplies supported by REGO certification

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

Our electricity consumption data for the financial year is taken from bilting data received plus an estimate has
been made for bills still to be received in respect of the 2021 financial year as at the date of these financial
statements.

Emissions figures include costs that are passed through to customers but are not disclosed separately within
these financial statements,

QOur Carbon accounting methodology is based on the following guidance:

®»  Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Standard — World Resources Institute
s 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

s Environmental reporting Guidelines 2019 (including streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance}
March 2019
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Directors Report

Financial Risk Management

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group have been outlined previgusly in this report {see pages 48-
52). As a result of these, as well as the on-going business activities and strategy of the Group, Argiva is exposed
to variety of financial risks that include financing risk, purchase price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate

risk and foreign exchange risk.

The key financial risks affecting the Group are set out below, together with a summary of how these risks are

managed.

. The Group will need to refinance
" at least part of our debt as it
matures and may need additional
financing to cover capital
expenditure and certain other
expenses to support its growth

¢ plans. The Group cannot be

~ certain that such financing will be
" readily available on attractive or
historically comparable terms.

Breach of debt covenants and/or
a downgrade in our rating could
_ impact the availability of finance
.. or the comparability of terms.

Energy is a major component of
the Group’s cost base and is
subject to price volatility.

The Group is exposed to credit
risk on customer receivables.

The Group is exposed to
counterparty risks in its financing
operations.

The Group mitigates tH is risk by the strength bf the

s

stable long-term investment grade capital structure in
place. Our BBB ratings reflect our string ability to
service and repay debt from our cash flows over a
reasonable period of time, maintaining debt with a
variety of medium and long term maturities, so that
over time we do not have a significant concentration
of debt due for refinancing in any given year, and
aiming to refinance debt well in advance of the
maturity date.

With regards to covenants the Group maintains
financial cavenant monitoring and modelling, both
retrospectively and prospectively and matintains
regular dialogue with credit ratings agencies.

A large proportion of this risk is managed via pass-
through arrangements to customers. The Group’s
residual exposure to fluctuations in the electricity
price is managed by forward purchasing the majarity
of power requirements. Key revenue and cost
milestones are set on larger projects Lo ensure the
financial risks of volatile market pricing are mitigated.

Credit risk is managed through appropriate credit
checking procedures prior to taking on new
customers; and higher risk customers paying in
advance of services being provided. Performance is
closely monitored to ensure agreed service levels are
maintained reducing the level of queried payments
and mitigating the risk of uncolectible debts.

The Group carefully manages the credit risk on liguid
funds and derivative financial instruments with
balances currently spread across a range of major
financial institutions which have satisfactory credit
ratings assigned by international credit ratings
agencies. The levels of credit risk are monitored
through the Group's on-going risk management
processes, which include a regular review of the
credit ratings. Risk in this areais limited further by
setting a maximum level and term for deposits with
any single counterparty.
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Fnsuring the Group has sufficient
available funds for working
capital requirements and planned
growth and funding for the
Defined Benefit pension scheme.

Exposure to interest rate risk due
to borrowing variable rate bank
debt.

The Group operates from UK sites

and predominantly in the UK

. market. While some customer
and supplier contracts are

" denominated in other currencies

: {mainly US Dollars and Euros), the

majority of the Group’s revenues

and costs are sterling based, and

accordingly exposure to foreign

exchange is limited.

The Group maintains cash reserves and access to
undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast
requirements. As at 30 June 2021 the Group had
£243.5m cash available and £250.0m of liquidity
facilities available to cover senior interest payment if
required. This facility was refinanced to a £150m
facility shortly after the reporting date together with
a £100m working capital facility. The Group also has a
£30.0m facility to support ‘Comms Hub Receivables
Purchasing’. The Board considers the availability and
adequacy of working capital funding requirements in
conjunction with forming its long-term financial plan
for the business.

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to rising interest rates. The Group maintains
a hedging policy to manage interest rate risk and to
ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows and
compliance with debt covenants. The derivative
contracts held are fixed rate hedging, split between
interest rates and inflation-linked swaps. The Group
has, however, elected not to apply hedge accounting
meaning gains and losses are recognised through the
income statement as fair vatues fluctuate (2021:
£11.1m loss; 2020: £121.7m gains). Interest rate
swaps convert variable rate interest costs to fixed
rate interest costs while inflation-linked swaps
convert fixed or floating rate interest costs to RPI-
linked costs, which fluctuate in line with the RPl index
as do a significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts.

Management regularly monitors the impact of foreign
exchange risks and assess the need to put any
mitigating financial instruments in place. During the
year the Group fully repaid its US Dollar denominated
private placements notes and closed out the related
cross currency swaps. No foreign currency
denominated debt was held at 30 fune 2021.
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Internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors review the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control, including risk
management systems and financial and operational controfs (see page 48).

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee includes representation from the Board of Directors. Frank Dangeard stood down
as a non-executive director of Argiva Group Limited and relevant group companies with effect from 1 July
2021. Frank also stood down from Board committee memberships, including his role as chair of the Audit & Risk
Committee. Since 1 July, Frank has been appointed as a board observer and has also conducted oversight
responsibilities of the Audit & Risk Committee, The proposal is that this role will continue for aninterim period
and will be kept under review by the Chair and the Board of Directors. Mike Parton will chair Audit & Risk
Committee meetings (or another committee member may be appointed to chair the meetings as required). The
Audit & Risk Committee continues to have representation from the Board of Directors.

In addition, it has responsibilities of oversight of risk management procedures, monitoring compliance and
regulatory issues (including whistiebiowing arrangements) and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and internal audit function.

The Committee is authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee of the Company in order to
perform its duties, and to obtain any external legal or other professional counsel it requires.

Meetings of the Committee are attended, at the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, by the external
auditors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and representatives from the business as
required.

internal Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the wark undertaken by the Group's internal audit
function, assessing the adequacy of the function’s resource and the scope of its procedures. The internal audit
function agrees its annual audit plan with the Audit and Risk Committee and regularly reperts its findings and
recommendations. The Group’s internal audit plan incarperatas an annual rolling review of business activities
and incorporates both financial and non-financial controls and procedures.

External Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appaintment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s externat auditor. The Committee makes an assessment of the
auditors’ independence and abjectivity taking into account the relationship with the auditors as a whole,
including the provision af any non-audit services.

PwC were re-appointed as external auditor in 2016 following a competitive tender process.

The auditors have provided certain nen-audit services, principally in relation to non-audit assurance. The Audit
and Risk Committee considers the acceptability of all non-audit services with the auditors in advance of
commencement of work to confirm acceptability and ensures that appropriate safeguards of audit
independence are established and applied, such as partner rotation,

Remuneration Committee

The Rermuneration Committee, chaired by Sally Davis, is established to make recommendations to the Board
regarding executive remunerations, including pension rights and to recommend and monitor the level and
structure of remuneration for each member of the Executive Committee. Additional oversight is extended to
setting and monitoring reward and incentive policies, including the Group-wide annual bonus scheme, and
reviewing and making recommendations in refation to wider reward policies.
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Governance and Nominatinn Committee

The Governance and Nomination Committee, chaired by Mike Parton, is established to give oversight to the size,
structure and composition {inciuding skills, experience, independence, knowledge and diversity) of the Board to
ensure that the continued leadership ability is sufficient to allow the business to compete effectively in the
market. This also includes oversight of the succession planning for directors [and other senior executives where
appropriate).

Operational Resilience Committee

The Operational Resilience Committee, chaired by Mike Darcey, has oversight of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the operational resilience strategies and procedures of the Group {including principles, policies and practices
adopted in complying with all statutory, and sub-statutory, standards and regulatory reguirements in respect of
safety, health and environment {'SHE’) matters affecting the activities of the Group). This includes consideration
and risk management of areas of significant and individual cyber security, physical security, business continuity
and SHE risk.

Equal Opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective
aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and the appropriate training arranged.
It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled person, should,
as far as possible, be identical to that of a person wha does not have a disability. Further information on how
Argiva supports its employees can be found on page 36.

Political Donations

No political donations were made during the year (2020: none).

Charitable donations

The Group has made £0.1m [2020: £0.1m) of charitable donations in the year,
Research and development

The Group performs research and development into new products and technology, the costs of which are
capitalised where they meet the criteria for capitalisation in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. The
research costs expensed in the year were £2.0m {2020: £5.2m). In addition, the Group carries out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of the bid costs unless
the development expenditure can be capitalised. The bid costs expensed during the year total £1.3m (2020:
£4.1m).

Development costs incurred as part of capital expenditure projects, which support customers contracts, are
includec with the total project spend within property, plant and equipment. The Group’s capital expenditure in
the year was £104.0m (2020: £247.0m) and includes capitalised labour of £34.4m (2020: £39.3m). Other
development costs are capitalised within intangible assets. In the year, new development costs capitalised total
£0.3m {2020: £2.7m) with amortisation of £1.6m (2020; £1.6m) charged against such capitalised development
costs.

Overseas branches

The Group has trading branches based in the Isie of Mann, the Channel Islands and France.
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Events after the reporting date

On 9th July 2021, the Group refinanced its bank facilities and now has access to a £100.0m Working Capital Facility
maturing in 2024 and a 25 year £150.0m Liguidity Fund. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a margin
over SONIA of between 120 and 130bps. Argiva Financing Nol Limited {'AF1") is the borrower under all of these
arrangements.

On 10 August 2021 a fire broke out at our Bilsdale transmitter site. Our engineers have worked on a four-stage
recovery plan to reinstate services present on the mast. Through phases 1 and 2 of our recavery pian, around
500,000 households have now been returned to a coverage area through utilisation of other sites and radio
services (FM and DAB) have also been restored for many. Works have been completed for the improvement of
TV coverage from our Estan Nab site and an additional 15metre mast has been installed at a site in Arncliffe
Wood in order to extend coverage from this site to achieve this. Phase 3 of the recovery plan involves the
erection of a temporary mast at the Bilsdale site which is expected to restore signals to over 90% of affected
households. Work began on the temporary mast on 13 September following a legal process to secure access to
the new site. Phase 4 of the recovery plan wili be to complete the enduring solution. Management are still
assessing the financial impact of the incident and the assets damaged by the fire, and have engaged with the
Group’s insurers.

Dividends and transfers to reserves

Now Digital (East Midlands), a Group company which includes a non-controtling interest, declared a dividend in
the year of £0.4m (2020: £0.4m).

The Directors’ of the Group have not recommended a dividend in the year (2020: nil).
The consolidated profit for the year of £504.9m {2020: loss of £322.8m) was transferred to reserves.
Going Concern

The Strategic report inctudes information on the structure of the businiess, the business environment, financial
review for the year and uncertainties facing the Group. Notes 20, 23 and 25 of the consolidated financial
statements include information on the Group’s cash, borrowings and derivative respectivefy; and financial risk
management information presented within this report.

The Group meets aur day-to-day warking capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going cancern through a review of forecasting inciuding
cash flow forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments. The Group
has sufficient financial resources which, together with internalily generated cash flows, will continue to provide
sufficient sources of liguidity to fund our current operations, including our contractual and commercial
commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing. For this reason, the Directors are confident
that the Group has adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing this financia!l information.

Following the sale of the Group’s Telecoms infrastructure and related assets on 8 luly 2020, management have
significantly deleveraged the Group, and maintain a cash position sufficient to meet current liabilities as they fall
due.

The Directors have also taken into account the potential implication of the current COVID-19 situation and have
determined that given there will continue to be demand for services provided by the Group and the Group has
a mixed customer base, the going concern basis remains appropriate.

Future Developments

The Group plans to continue in its commercial and gperational business in accordance with its strategy. Further
detail is contained within the Strategic report an page 19.
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Ownership and Directors

A description of the ownership of the Group and the Board of Directors holding office during the year and up to
the date of signing of the financial statements can be found on page 43.

At 30 June 2021, Mike Parton was the Group’s independent Chairman. Rachael Whitaker was the Company
Secretary at 30 June 2021. Rachael Whitaker resigned the role on 1 July 2021 and Jleremy Mavor was reappointed
as the Company Secretary on 1 July 2021.

For details on the background of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee please refer to page 43.
Details of the statutory directors of the Company are shown on page 130.
Directors Indemnities

The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which is a qualifying third-
party indemnity far the purposes of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force during the full financizal
year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the Independent Auditors
The Directors of the Group in office at the date of approval of this report confirm that:

- So far as the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit infoermation of which the Auditors are
unaware; and

- Each Director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to estabiish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that
information.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the group for
that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

seect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 have been followed for the Group financial statements and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been followed for the Company financia! statements,
subject to any material departures disclased and explained in the financial statements;

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group and Campany will continue in business.,

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group’s and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements compiy with the
Comnpanies Act 2006.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website, Legislation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions,

On behalf of the Board

oS —

Mike Parton

Director
21 September 2021

67



Argiva Group Limited (05254001}
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2021

Financial Statements

Group Financial Statements

Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Argiva Group Limited..........cccceeii i, 69
CONSOlAAted IMCOME STATEIMENT . itvis it it ee ettt et emeees e et et e oat o eem e ete e ate e tes e ate s s ntesen st soeenn s 77
Consolidated statement of ComMprehensive INCOME ... e e e s 78
Consolidated statement of fiNanCIal POSITION. ..o s e et e s nnee s 79
Consolidated statement of changes in equity .81
Consolidated cash flow STalem et e e e ettt e 82
Notes to the Group financial StatemMEeNTS. e e omereereee s 83
Company Financial Statements

Directors’ report for Argiva Group Limited {(‘the COMPany ). e e 130
Company statement of financial POSITION. ... e e e 131
Company statement of Changes IN EOUITY ..o ettt 132
Notes to the Company financial staterments. e et e e e 133

68



Anraual Report and Consaiidated Foanaal Statements 2021

Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Argiva Group Limited

PLlE a Qewe oot g ot the

Report on the audit of the
financial statements

TR
el

AN ACCoLit

Opinion Basis for opinion

Ve rondaton o a-a b
17 0L O I ’
R . - o Jeco-dac e w th

finang

starement, 30

e e

Cornany fingngal slateme

give 3 true ad farr view of rie

. . L. S0 Ty Oilihies 1O e 0 0F e

Fadne,anitate nects sedr oo af our

AL e 202 ane of rie

I P

e elieys

ids

RIS S

CAaat POy

g the y

- eIV A A
enrlon

. =Grounfoane al Jtarerents
DAL ORSN DIODeTly QTepAres o mdependence
L Ve re tvnced otene wlent of o
Booonnte g standands o G e At Tre TR
ca oMt it Tre e VATt 0
S pTeRents 07 Tre [ anie) A0 aTaterne ts
Aot 2006, '
t
Aocestac Ardaoern g Pract o
TR KR ACCO LT g Our audit approach
Standards Lo e BRSO
Qverview
, R O
- * i

IS R T

AL SIS

I3

LU LetET 3L DrOen ey 0

w12

30U 433TaTIITE N0 00w UE

Koy andi ~attens

s Wdalaatior ot faac e
S TEN TS TETOL )

e Carrynguwaioe of gooca:’

TGronp)

. vigr and recoverahilin,
of deferred fax assers (G oo
s Yalation of getined nenehn

nersioe scheme !t abory
VGroupl.

o Covid 19 empacts 1Grogn and
Parent)

¢ Ao Tag o Zan

dismnia

arouen!

M aterianty
® Dweral Grong maatsr 300y,
8 300 000 hased o

aporoxararte, 25 0 ot Ady
FEITDA
* Overal! Comy:

FA30 2T

3P0 3te sy o7 Mot
* 0 Peaanmance viater

EA 225 0001500y 5!
RIS TS RN T
The scope of our audit

AT DA 0T GewE ng v e

chmatemal s

Vo

TEURT LT DT VATEC A1 L)

T3 tate et

Key audit matters

A0 IS 3T 3T T

[ T Iy N i L TVTA WTTATET . T




Annual Report and Conschdated Fimane a\ Stateﬂ onty 2221

whore and ot for ez our oom on {Grount, LATION, Presenrtation Cemited witt the oot onadl 24in
tereon and we do ot prov de 3 ANc disclosure of dscontinuedd wsposa of discontied operatio
SERArAte Buit Y 00 TRes? Matters, operat-o s 1Grouptand a0 aeing mdladed s a aew key audit
Mves mert m subsicharies (Parent ratter P yar, Tog
TSI N OTE i L= A= PR Qo g A AR S wiich were kRey sudt matters et Prplemertation o7 IFR> 16 was
deanified by oorn yEer, e np longe  ineuded vecause app cabre oty o Te ﬁrs' yoas of

of the fallowimg reasons, Inrelation

disonsal

o

Artonntog for o

SERTLA Y E TH ot

1Gron

prees (At or

TO FEven e ane
coamples cortrgrts

adopnion of rhe standa The

peob Tt recoEnILon 0. SuesthieErt oy subsicar

Penyters TnRared e peor e

Rryos o a0 poot t Zivoig rsp ta the complex tos aee Otrergse, the <y veadibmattor,
e R TS TR S I S TR TR N Eh W S U IRAN I T e cormednt ol Dy oo rgd NETUW 308 COCSTE T Wb s 3T
31 IFRS 1THorp e nisr bty operanans o the Current yoar wory

et ke e e e e e e , S e e
Key audit matter L How our audit addressed the key audit matter !

: Waluation of fmaﬂtlal mstrumemts (Group) : 1
The Groap holes a b ot deriy ative Siaa ol Fwe engaged Pwl L 303rons eXperts 1o 3:, 50 witn [oe i

< P T ey Lo g erest vate and mtiatior Paudi of rhe arty valLanons of each arerest
Cheled swans o re anon Ta tee finaacog o7 the ' Tates swap s “hed swap. 2 !
! Croup. Trese eyt AT T AT : - - o
Sy nRAy Ul S ine a8y 00 2 00T DOt 0 D s : Lo Those T s Our exp "5 TR0 a e
CThe Group 4000073 107 71ha v3 L aners OF s Fine b value g fre e Pwl vaiiatian rode :

Colsbraments ust2 03, Anon0s proyvde Dy e

COn ey ST L s with ad s tnents eanle oy

L W !>I

sh

g e 0 o teraarty (et

s eea sectiement nf several der vatives

e year Toss rontees fo e 3 key 3 e

frar 3 53mM0e O it Teats

The 3 nunt recog

comparad o

Dstatenents

We atin antaeg cgependent contrmane s, of e

CTATEr e o e cople oty of theva it ors g Eoawap arrangostests A0l diaeaated vear ¢t far .
L gaanTo ™ af Balances ounwed, aronotg tg i YA ues aod o aaren ,
£320 3 gervatice francal eistoarnent eptties i We mave aan g i

3 dervan ey o |
Hator ty P 87 e 117 note 3- IR AN SR A L PR '
ACOUTT O E 0 e S oat amepts And notE | orepay ety o deryat vee 0F 55 300w b ae i
25 franice anstenre st 40 S MAnIgenent ., 1 Besn arapriai 2y terogn sed a1 aocloseewrtn i

}4 the nane s atateirent, ,

i i

A ares taf ol ok g o e an s ate il |

i respect af rhe ot of

Cd fying vqhe of ﬂood\mll (Group) :
N - WO ohTamed A Lol g 0f e o 3t o of I

YO DTERATRE AN A MDA et rEVIEW s Y T el Of i DRI ' ' ' E s . :

: " . Co : Arpdr e b onnce] 4003 eased 1T A e ey :

10U ng o e D AT b 40l the iMpaTinent rey e ; ;

Doertorred aver goodar inciude 4 nwerner of ‘ We testad e 10 a ToIeal MO0 deaeaslTE 1y :
At o which are subject fo muageriert CratheIm I accL ALy TRE ACCLTACy 08 e puts 10 [Ne .
podge.niert 2 esTimates Pomoaenand the feas ) toieniess OF the as e pt ons

, I Y MG 2 TSN 35305007 The waiuahion oF '

‘ ctonige 22 and oave 104 {ore d Al bapodwill Tor each cane generatiog unit These o aed

: Focodr PABEEOIT et A0 Key SOoUrce s of sstandthon ke 35,0 00s For ey enLe 3nd cosl ZrnwTr, capi

| reest ety Inanmens ot goodawaell aed note 14 erperdit e e e docnnnt rate naed ,
goodwi'l

' H
e tated the ot Ploas oo agieed et Roarn

: , APPTOVEs 30 0 TOrTIed 0 D0 DAL TENT G e ;

: ; ITCLIA0Y 0 fornesl g |

- et o 11 ot et - e J——

Ao oo Len vad o nipany reg 050

VG e T

(-

13

||vy



: Dwve owolve oo PaCualuations exnecrs ro eval
) Prie disratnt cate used 1o can alate the oresent valae
bof e casn flows oo cor brmed s was ca'vulated |
{ LA acreptaE verodalogy asd oo iven rthar
; R I S AL B 1 A N ally ool ant e w it
. Povol d expet 4
: |
:! LR v 5
oo For mrad Dor Gay 0 S8RV T 37 wE Loy ering ;
) ‘ DA en TEASD 2Ny U0y e AN ar S IR AT ey
EESSORVAITE I Wordy Fows, tecroat
f growih cate ard discount ares. Basea g this test og. i
Db Consilenen wretiier e Larr g vatue uf the 1
; ; S e wAs ardeqaateny s casarted by fne /
‘ Dvalue g-se mipamine st mode, e died by !
' i Aaragement, aod found there fo be a szt oant eval :
Fot read-oom
1 |
Recognition and recoverability ot deferrea tax assets : '
{Group) f ‘
oo ey QS | \ R 5
Rt a s bt st erest ded s O R aT NG Adeiprrad iy daset
P et et et duefe o od Ty wiset ag teg ‘
e A geat e g dabeireg b see 2230 ey [ENTT RN LMo AN 0T AT 1B 0 T
oAt e ot ine 5ianee sheer e e . VO LT O et DT Tt sl i
SAL L st agrerta geterrent e SOF ; 1
TUCOET s A e g RS PRENICRETS ' . |
‘ [E RIS TR I ST : ‘w
i Ac s P e e AL AT E T s

P00 e aran g

i R S N R~ |
. |
T .
e e e e deear neons wihetne spec Y ostens 3o
. I
[ R Gri R eran g e gl e 0T e o
. s e w0 B - - RE '
. :
s
1t t’ 2:][.!""\\4 1 \}“_; Te T
I R NG R

toe an o ‘5
. Lanmos of ‘
: .
; .
i :
. RS PLE T ¥
1

b st i

s A
. s
N 1
! i
. ¢
e e e e 4 . e

Valuat.on of defined penefit pension scheme nabihty
F(Group) : !




Annual Report and Consobdated Financial Statements 2021

The vatuat:on of the plae habebtres (£245 S ecludes
ek level o estamiatinn gncertairty, compisiog
severa: dfferoa Koy ascampuions There s arisk that

dn enar within o or a caribiration of those

sy ptans conld tead to g ovateral mpsstatemant e

Prhernacciacstatements
i
i

Retor fo pide 12V nate 29 relremert nenefits)
[ERES !

acceprable ranges based on market datd

ATe N

conchede that all i the «ey assumplions do it with n

cur acceptablie range,

We aiso tested the key nauts to suaportng ev dencs
wITh no excepons ated

We reviewed the acruactal repo-t ana eaguired or

rrasagement adilres

madelling accaracy and the contrals nopyace "or The

modelhng and perfarmed onr aw d4ra vaheator

chacks We also pertarmed rak assessimreet anayl 03!
procedares on poth tne finanaal 3¢ derographie

Assuptions.

As a4 restet 0f 0o work pesfarmed g omater &

chfferenres ware Mofec 1 7esRent o re e 13 on

heneffomigar o0 recog e e hrde, &

starements at 30 one 2021

1

Covid-19 impacts (Group and Parent]

Since early 20240 the Cov d 19 nanderns nas

mmipacted the globe creaticg consderanle Lacetamnty

FOP e 00T Sy 3 3G T ATRETS

Daspnte sore chalie tges, Aritva, A a ciobica natonal

Ttrastraciare bosiness, haye continued 1o operate

througnout e paacem Cand bave contr wed m0

A ITAN 587 RS POl L0 370 T8 470

Ll

;DO ALt CARADINT s 401055 The counTry and

ot Cowie

anagement theraton consder tne mpace

19 v e ke

Uk Lo rerna

'

WOTT SO e e U T U Tave

e

B esse, T npod” v oo arlverts

st of tre ovkdower s an T UK,

|
| Key progeas nes such as tne FO0MHr Jearasie

i '

Porogeaevne and the Steget eierng rolios avo 3lse

seenimoacted due to aCeess to the s Les being

arited however T s ot had aoogater gl cnpact on

the pusiress and o addimonal povisions Nave neen

corsider=d necessaty., FY22 bodeets have neen

:
Foreyiyrted by o anage et to oosuce that ity
A as AT CEVISION s AMS MAR TO TANe T0 ATCuant Aty

e Aed sepectod omigacts of Covidd- 19, Thesa have

i BTSSR
I

We Coscussed the rpacr o Covie 18 2 eart key
wreeting neid vt aTople evels
AU7055 The Groan,

Covitt 19 a4, part of our gom

T TAg e et 4t
WO L0 s GErer FRE et OF

Lo Lern porer res,

is

wiedheg co s denng the npdated Fr22 9 daer,

Se

gxresr of sens tr ppiied "o e s severe but

>

Wit

niausibie coweoside sCendarias, Ao we (onn T

gomg cancere wete Cov o 19 ~ar by g amipacted ths

COnCsIOn

-

We alao coaardered pae vpet of Cowid-19 as pat or

rdr \‘71[):37r AR W TRy g R Fre— exdecten

FTRAcT 00 FUTLrE s oA s Culen dbove A part o”

S WVOrK e caallengerd ey de s e g A5 Wik s
perfarnung tarhey sens fiy Ty Testng e reasonaily
0083 e Cha Yge 1 asw RboN. o g Frat P

e carc o

19 #0 e

irnact of Coved-
seached o orelanion *o e cany g satae of Goodwill

We andited provisions socated w b toe detays

experierced o0 koy progonmmes 3d concades thar

hese are Nater dlly angrowate

e et o . Lo .

trie distIgsures .0 rhe Thiancial statement, e
adeq Ate AnU (oSt Tent Wt our Aokt o< an
T by beee

Bugsines s g bowy

daderstanding of r

swacted by the nanden. o

Arcirea Groap Leritod toompany rog 05253001

R



Annual Report and Lomsolidated Fmanaal Statements 2021

j Accaunting for gain on dispasat (Group) r ve btamed tne g sa'e documre s 3 d ofres

‘ O 8 Iuiy the Group campleted the haie of s % supporting oyv.dence nclud g agreament 1o pank
D Tetecoms mfasteucsire and retatod as5ems a7 3 vaie { statements. to ag e the salas proceeds “efaiveil
DOfE1 820 A e of LT032.6m W reogis i

: WIEDeT TRe FY 2T A ancidl sLare T en E

: [ amo: e rather
! Godmtm 0F thy 23 or & anosan, D rhan 23l consderato it e 3700 o F Lo m see e s
. HFICATL I ACT TR 1Te T A tad o f o he prov.ded

Coenat oy prot Towe tave ooneded TRy a9 s <y A, i : spneC.drsis fo Jgree

D oatrer [ amconnt rate apaTied o tne dete rad e

i j tang ne Tormed resticg ouen e

’ caiculiation,

Rerer 1o 949 a-d page 111 (Consotaated

_0e

eiment, npre 7 Deeepty-al fers and

nate 21 Discontinaed onecanons and deposa. grouy | Ve perfonmay sunsiainve Tesing over e Gro.n s

direct costs ot tne saie ch were deducted wher

e for v g
aring at the orofit on disnosal

We Ysg agread fre pet gssef valig Loeeld o THe

D1 30Es 08 T rel AT Do ey e T e

ahired tnas 000 yer Bnd, A nten S TaE Do

S3€

3z el tne raicann or tne g vn hased onroe

FOIBVANT N Ity 1T IR AN 085 E WDt e FRe Fax

Preatrent of th g g

Saloimprant

Mo e et nron aor.

:
Ve tor rea
i
|
i

PAe Lo e e e elaten s

oA

SNedia D ostomioe

mes METw G,

il

N e T
oh NI

HO A

o2 Ay

for e mught gy 0 thie cnrest Bnangal year proor T




Annual Repart and Consobdated Finanaial Statements 2021

e e e e |
: | : FlnanCIaI statements - Companv :
H 1 N 1
: e ; e e e e -
] 1 1
! Overal . ; rZ%L ;
i | ! !
i materiality i ! ;
e S S —
v How we approxnately 2 57 of Adjusted Papproxnmataly 2 of Net Assets ;
i I - : I
i determmned it | EBITDA [
e e e e e e e e e - e S
ationale for ased 2 our profesainaal s v Based on our professiosal wdgemen T net st
Rat f | B 1 nrof Dy c Based prof | T + :
! i i i ; i
1 benchmark Pactusted FBITDA 5 3 aporopriare AT ADPIaDTIALe Mesure To Assess the perforrance
I ! R ;
applied ! aaipisted measure 1@ assess the : of the Company ane s 3 generally arceoterd {
; - ! o i
; : poerfocmanee oF the Grouo, woich Poanditiee penc sy Arde of thumo of !
! [ X ' . 3 3
: i Lot Uiy iy e ety trading ! APDTOXLTAte v 2N 15 APD02ate Siven Tha e ;
' Frosults coentity meif s aot A PIF
[ L e e ———— —. ——

forescn component 1 the s7one of
vur Group audit,
that s

Groun mater

we niocated a
ATty less than our

Overal: »j‘\t“ Thera, e
of matena ty aliocated arross
RURAS

Coe s

COMIPONENTL was Detweer
aid £7.97 Ce-

wnted bty 2o

tam camp

WETE SLATTOrY

Aaditoratenianty that wis 4750 a5

o3 our overal Grovop aimareniality,

We s nerformance matena ity 1o

TELhL e T ARNTOnNrIAtey low eval

thie pronability that the aggregate o7
Lnenrrected and undetecred

Ausstatements exceed, overa!

Argteril bty Specificatly, we e

uertan emater ality 0
geterminirg the scooe of eur adas
and the aature and exient of o

test g ol accaant Dalances, cias e
of Leasactions and disens. tor
Exaiule 1 ARTETNTINING 5a ™S L7 es
Ou petornarce ratera ty was

TarerAalTy,

AMonaTing to f'(.Z"S,UOU Tt

SoR mnancal statement, and

r
£172 704 for itne Compa ty Tinangy!

srer nonng che pertormytie

TrArenInty

STRLAN

we considered
Nt racTor, he history of
Tiraatatements, risk Assess nent 4
ageregition sk ano the

gife tvenes: of controly - ard
Amount at rhe

coacaried tnat an

e @rd oF Qur oAl ang

Cowids

v

IpPTOnT At

(R A et

Gith 1opse i

ATEET W

aaverng g rhal we wouln TeEport T

them misstaterments identined

g onr asdit anove £300.000

£ 11,006
A5 NESLATEmienty

1Geo gy audity ar CCOMpATy

15 W E

Delow PI05e amounts Trat, oooar
VBV, WATT-N T D Ting Tor

UUALTALIVE reqsons

Conclusions relating to going
concern

Brx
perfor med. we nave rotidentifies

ed O e Word we Ndve

37y Matenal urcartginties re ar ng o

Syeats 07 cond fons thar

brdunlly or collectivesy Ay Cast

sgitboant doubt onthe Group s ana

oL o ' TR,

3a0rg concer for 3 necod of ot

foast rwelve ooty oot vhie e

AN sTatementy are autnonsed

COr s

Ldhiing the P rancal srare et

onchoded roat the

RV

BEFIERSH

CUanint
,‘:“eo aration of the f

Tatemeats s AR ITODRT

Hov 2 3l tutre

Evert, o cond hons can be

Decaase na”

sredhicred, This coC Lo snot a

auaaree gL to the Goonn's ard the
Company's abyliny ro cantanne 3w 3

SORHERE IR

O respossibiiities and the

’P_'.,(mrh-‘:: ey OF The Derectan s wih
FELpent O g0NE (00 ey are
r::zl;('f:r)»:ri I thie reievart sections of

e enort

Reporting on other
information

ermnforyiat o T ey ab

The oth
ot e ntormation s e A 3!

Report other thae fre © 0300 a

rhereon. The Directors are

-'espaj:*i:h\e fo-tre orive

AFoenration Coropios o e

Laane statements does not cove:

the other mfornatone are

accord. gy, we do nor ex res, 1

dladt QRN ON 0T exeept To Le 2T

oTneryse exphothy stared g

raport. any fore of ce
fereon

P oo Nernhion wWite 0L adt or the
Fredancial sratenent . oo

[R=S10IS1R BT Ty =50 7org Pl
TACT AT 08 Al as doie s Lo

Cors der whether tne e

T AT G s T AT ity

Actn tlRe Fcaecial stataen e oroon

EFrowledge obla cedin e 30l T o

OTPerwse ARDed s to e e

moestated I we deri-fy 30 aun

mates Al mconsiste sty or Mater 3

nesstatement we are cequeed T

pertorm procedures to condite

whetrer these s 4 narenal
s tAteent of fre fin g
statements or 4 materny
msstatement of the sther
information # based o0 e woe

U TR Y

Wty e pertar med

rhut there iy a Maler4 Is~Tarorsor

of thes aother fonmeanon, we are

regpehredd fo ITRACE WY N

repot th

oI R I0 TEpOTT DASed Or iNeLe

"'-.':S(_)(,‘WSID||'T\E'H‘

~

With respect o e St

R N T

ratepic Report

Arped Group Levtad tcompary reg 052520010 e



Annuai Report and Consalidated Froanoa! Statements 20203

cocsdlered whether the ciaclosires
ceguired by the UK Comoanies At
2006 nave neen sachded.

Based or gur work Ladertasen m fre
carse of the g, the Comroares
At 2006 qogay

Certany gonnos; A Al Ters g

&5 Us Asd fa repot

descriped pelow

Strategic Report and Directors’
Report

P Ou 0pINton, Hased 05 fhe Wik
dertaken o the (ownrse af the
gadt themformanios zv
Srra- s

Report 0 mne y=3 "2 uen

i the

30 dee 2021 S 00 s StE ot ihy

Pl 3o 5!

SEIERES

arepatad i Accorea e 5

apuacable legalreqie Tieot s

oo ot the ke huage 30

corderstasdimg o tre Goaap and

RIS N

(I

Comran, and s

anaed in tre

W ghd T d

OosatATER IRy o THe S

Responsibilities for the
financial statements and the
audit

Respansibilities of the
Directors for the financial
statements

s Buid -

Rk Te [0 IS

SL5U078 e tgr e

o TnATC A 3TALe e,

LD AnCg Wt the agn

e N 3ngd forpe o

Nl B . 3

gog concenn, disclosng, as

IV IS R

Cmaters related tu go ng

(VR G oasIng T 2010g Lo ern
DA 0P Al ounhing anless the

coetend o laoidae

thie Gioay o the Comaany or '

LEA=S OO T A0 1y, O BAve 0 r

alte ety e but ro do S0

Auditors' responsibiiinies tor
the audit of the financial
statements

Oir abyectives are 1o obtas
Sasaiiatye a

ance Anuat mherhes

e T vanceal st

e

T ety A3 3w aiG

TRt A M SRt ITE ve

Sron Ao

CAL0r e

Feawgiias-

ITREAIES ERTARA TS LRSI o Thi

~anieve’ of
Sonoranes, BT o a0l 3 g Lar e
oeomducted

et SAL G Al s

cotent o mater g, Mo iats e

Mligatgrermanr, ¢

Texsty
4 s fro frand os e g e
O, derea taterdal o edives iy o

aeate, thev could

T

MIAR=INA

Cr e

TARE D0 TR TS 0T T

S aten

IEIRIS B Y- s bl S VIR A A IR

s 40e lanibhe af e e

TTEE ) Ar SIS EAE A TR s WY S B

o the fancial starenients sien 3s
e Conmanies At 2006, We

. .-l . [
avd oopoTtLn ey for fraac.ent
naNpLIAton o the fingaoa,

stateents iodloading fre rok or

avernde of contralsi and
determingd rhar the srmoal raes

were retated o ranaaerent s
T oot ey perforiange

PICASLIRS S 7 oA, A0

s bet
raxahion, teres, dencen o

amortsaten (EBITDA wWe have
deternined EBITDA 5 the key metrc
torstakeno

ers. sath 45 tne Group s
s and lender |

dibimate pace

sherefore the v o3t wely for

ITATIAZErTent Mg

LA T roush

TS D0TINE 07 AT

aly 3nviy

KISt

.

Cant

At

T O TS QUET 5T

A couant o iare,

srocadt tes peto

EUZAEeIMeaT t

v Doecosiions atr RMaragement

ang Dorecrass el g
O Qe ATION O kYO 07
s rtat e ot e

IO W T ey 1T

RIS IR T I P

L]
»
S, 0OS et et g T
ACLGL Cins 0
" By Ryt
L=
* ey




Annual Reporr and © onsondatec‘ Fman’m\ Statements 202

GYstances of tor-complance wirn A fipther descrpuon of our Other required reporting

iaws and reguiations tNas are not resannsibilites fo che aadi o the

Cosely redted to events ana financal statements s iocated o tre .

; iy s et e e Eoy e . Companies Act 2006
frans3ch:ons retiectes n the fraca =0 0 .

statenients Ano tharnsk of not WAWW.ETC OrE Uk AUiTOSres ponsinhy exception reporting

2000 we

detacting a material nisstatemen® ey, This clescipton tanms past of ou- Unaer tre Companies At
doe to fracd 5 egher fran the rsior I Co are “equined Lo reporT to you fo
ot derectng o2 oot ng from elter we 350 agrecd To dese e g 00T OBIMon

FoAas teaach vy vobve ALl aaroact, I Tan g . wibave ot ot ted 3 1o
deliberate concaaliment oy, for corr L ating key 4 orlinntroes, storisatias acd exniznanons
example "OgEr, OF nrentio.al S TR 07 v T

misrenresentalany o thrpugh Use of this report . & 3C00aNTag TECOre,
or beer kent o, the

Trs cepoart o ocludmg e apin o, Company a7 e o adeduate

Wl

collusion

ot wrepared forand 0aly for for our audit have ot neen

Our audit resting miant

testing complere popuiatiors of P 7 ot T recened Trom uranchas aof
Ur"llﬂ trarsict ors and baaoces, AwCorsance with Chaoter 3 of Pas 16 vianted by asoor

possibly usivg data awd ©.og of e (ﬁ()"'[.ma‘ne‘k ACL 2006 10 for R

rechircues. However F oy o by DO OTHYT O TpOse WS o tot, FemUIBerEtIon 50e0IMen Ty LW

siwoives selecting a e number Z NG TGS ORI T Ar0ent 07 are ot made o

FECONEI ;'e‘;)o:mi[)ui:’, Lo Ay othes o« He Camnan
the Comp-

of 1terr, tor rest 2z, rather than

L DU DO OF 1O A7 0TNe T Derson b
cre popniabons e PUTDO QF IO A7 D PETHON TG statemEtts 0o ot

WO Ty 00T IS SO OF IR0

Testag nony

3 2ATETT W T ) T

will ofte 1 seec To farger nartic.,

7]

) . LA Gt T o
ey for test mg Dased o tney Sz WA BANCs 3Ty L0ME S rovors actd retorn,

whiere e, V~>s\\, agieed by our prior

OF TIsk characterstire 10 ofer Gy

O ae0t e wnling . :
we e sse et sarepiing 1o enanie R W By e o Exc et on: Lo Tepnnt
weTodraw asontius ar 330 1 ne TS0 P TR rEa g0t

popuation from wh chthe samaie 5

selecter

UGM&

Mogel ComeliotSer or Statotony Auiimu

0T Are 0t el Cow TR O L elo
Cha-tared ATroue s ol STt oty S Lo
Lo clor

21 Sentem

Loy Geoup bunted conmpany 1




Anrual Report and Consehdated Financial Statements 2071

Consolidated income statement

Gros{t)r;ft | - |
Operatn;; profit | 7 | '
T B . '
ljlo‘ss) ¢ protit hefo‘r‘n: tax
{toss) / prote far the year
P P R TN IR TS ST

138.5

8ar

(529.5]

Year ended 30 June 2021

Taral

£

el

29 4151

s 11e8 3

(7

(25 m!

pY (A
Tl

1.9 140.3

L0101 1429

10331 5G4.9

50339

482 3

i1 )
(RIS
1159
190.5)

BTl

18%.5

{300.3)

(390.5}

Year ended 30 june 2020

Totar
fin

(34.7)

(R

93.7 281.2

811 {319.0
57.7 i322.8)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Profit f {loss] for the year
Items that will not be ceclassified subsequently to protit or loss

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
e BT L LT ST

Total ather comprehensive income / {loss)

Total comprehensive mcome / (loss)

Year ended
30 June 2021

Note s

504 9

19.8

200

524.9

523.9

Arcnaaaau Bimeted roomoay s U5 5400 1

Year ended
30 June 2020

(322.8)

(3 6}

9.6}

{332.4)

1332.3)
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Consolidated statement of financial position

30 fune 2021 30 June 2020
Note £m fm
Non-currant assers
W - - R
‘. i i
oo 4 o - -~
3,173.2 3i64.1
Lurrent assets
432.7 3138
4327 1.500.2
Total assets 3,606.9 456613
Currant hiabiiities
{2,555 6} {2,592 1
{2,555 8} 13.022.04
Net current hatbilines 12,122.9) {1,521 &)
Nor-curreat liabilities
(4.621.0) (5,737.4)
Tatal liabulities 17,1772.2) (8.759.1)
Not kabiities 13.570.3} {1,095 1)
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Consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Eqqurty
a0
; 1 N
N [ S
Total equity

Mike Parton

30 june 2021 30 june 2020
£m £m

{3.570 3) {3,095.1)
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Total Eganty

3ttrbutabie to Mon-

share shas Franslation aaners of the contralling Taryl

ot Lyl proemum Yroumulated [00ees [RYR R Parent mterests enquiry

ing Im i tm wm £m im

Balance at 1 july 2019 553.9 1156 {3.732.0 (0.7} 13.7636) 1.0 {3,762 6}
T " i N -

Balamce at 30 lune 2024 653.9 315.6 {5.065.1) (0.7 (4.086.3} 1.2 {3,095.1}

- - - H R

Balance at 30 lune 2021 6539 315 6 (1,540 7y 10.5} [3.571 7} 1.4 {3.570 3)

3
.
L
i
J
1
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Net cash inflow from operating activities

livesting activities

Nat cash inflaw / (outflow) from investing activities

Financing activities

i L R I A

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash eguivalents

. - '
M= . ' '

Note Year ended
30 June 2021

£m

o 393.7

{1.999 6}

1334
lin1

2435

Arg-va roanp Limted fcompany rog 0525400

Year ended
30 june 2020

£fm

139 0

{115 0)

1281.2}

89.8
203
110.1
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1 General information, authorisation of financial statements and Statement of

Compliance
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3 Significant accounting policies
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Media

Distribution

Year ended 30 June 2020 Em
i Al 1
- v b1
¢'A
Revenue 555.4

Smrart Utilities Total continuing Total discontinued
Networks operations operations
£m £€m £m
I
121.1 6775 225.3

5028

Rey-oue expecied 1o be recogused o futore penods aacluded in oo arder hoox, for nertormance uuligaliors 1hat are
a0t comnlete (or are pactally comalera) as at 30 Jume 202115 4. 143 5m 12020 L1019 B The anticmated T anng of

raropneion of this revenue 15 a5 follows,

< 1lyear 1-2 vears 2 Syears 5-10 years > 10 years Total
vear ended 30 June 2021 £m £m £m £m £m £Em
] . = L H -
Revenue 531.3 468.3 1.118.1 1,229 3 166.3 4,113.9
Year ended 30 June 2020 <1 year 1-2 years 2 Syears 5-10 years > 10 years Totai
fim £tm Em £m fm £m
Revenue 567.5 527.6 1,277.7

Contract assets and liabilities

The Groas Fas ecodr sen Tae foeow - 2 38805 ana

A0t A n el at e Tooront A

1.286 7 3601

Lt LSt ey

3,0i96

Lontract assets

Contract liabihities

30 June 2021

455.0

30 June 2020

£

328.5

Arepy 1 o Lmibed ccampany rog 352530071 494
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Year ended 30 June 2021 Media Smart Utihities Other hscontinued Consolidated
Distribution Netwarks Operations
£m Eim £m £m £Em
Revenue 519 5 122.8 19 617.2
Segment result” (EBITDAY 3271 3i.8 {36.5] 2.5 3308
N i b - -
Operaung profit from continuing operations 1335
Loss before tax from continuing oparanions {597.2}
' - i FYR ToastITh D MR TP L ISR NN SLEL
Year endad 30 June 2020 Media Smart Litikties Other Discontinuetd Consniidated
Distripution Metworks Dperations
£m £t fin
Revenue 556.4 1211 - 2253 902.8
Segment result” [ERITDA) 33.4.2 517 {34.3) 1314 523.0
Operating profit from continuung operations 1855
Loss befare tax from cantimuing operations [100.3)
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& Operating profit

Qperativg prottfor the year Pas haon anved at alter cnarg g 0 {credifing

Year ended Year ended
10 June 2021 30 fune 2020
£m Em
n N ‘ 1 3 a 4
. | - -
N 1T = ! [ .
[ b v
[T 21 i
i 5 | . e \ Ir e . i
Y o T . R Vo
T , . iy . -
Sevuizes grovided by the Group'. awdears and network firms
Durg the vear “hie Gronp ohteeed tre . : w
Group Group
Year ended Year ended
30 lune 2021 30 June 2020
fm £m
- - i N 1 I . r a
1t
Non-audit services
H L I L R O ITERTI I I PR IR S S 0.8 1.3

Argrwa Groud Linntent {(company 1o 05253000 R
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7 Exceptionatitems
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8 Employees

The ayesigo onting ambBer 0f Derans epreser 1ty

s An FOIOWw S

Total employees

Year ended
30 Jume 2021

Number

1528

Year ended
30 june 2020

Number

1.8643

Total employees

Tre: ag

gUregate re Y rerter coepe sed

Year ended
30 june 2021

Number

Year ended
30 lune 2020

Number

1864

income statement expense

Year ended
30 june 2021

£m

32.9

Year enced
30 lune 2020

£m

88.1

Arcpyt Crous Limited fcompany (. 05253130 1) 1ac
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8  Finance income

e Year ended
30 june 2621

Total
= n £m
- s - 27

Total finance income o 2.7

Other Faan al 3sac ncume ocindas 20 3v 2000 5

P O A0 etz

10 Finance costs

FAT AT i e o fho et s

Year ended
30 june 2020

Fatal
Em

0.3
0.2
2.7
3.2

(e l=i

B L Year ended
. - T 30 June 2021

Totsl
(374

~
o
=8

-~
v
an

86 2

4.0

- 529.8
L 20.1

Toraimterast pavable

5
~
~
@

h

Total fipance costs £53.1

¥aar ended
30 June 2020

Total

£m

86.3
111%

200.9

13
238
165 3
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11 Other gains and losses

Note Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 fune 2020
£m £m
- . i
1 - - i S ot ER h
Qther {losses) f gans (B7.8) 1136
' " . Sl o o !
AP ' T Y U S DU RN i !
Exceptional ather {fosses) / gaing 17.8) 11
Totai other gamns and losses {75.4) 113.7
23

ST Loy 20200000 Group econam Ol ecged Trose et Leents Wt oo s currerey S s T galy 2020 the
ELIE IS5 CLE SN0y SadD DOHTToho was exed as detaled i note 25 afthe same toe the Grood repa d ofs US dotiar

genonelted delyt isee note 230

Al otrer gaing 1od lonaos e year anded 30 bone 2021 310 30 June 2020 celate to Contin N2 oneratons

12 Tax

Year ended Year ended

30 fune 2021 30 june 2020

£m fin

e -

T . , -
R . , . P . TR .
Y I ' A b

Pt . 5

= [ -
Total tax {credit} / charge tor the year {62.0) 38
Income tax expense 15 artribuitahie to-

U L A -

{62 0) ER-1

Total tax {credit) / charge for the year

UK rarporation fad s csicd ved 2t a sare of 1907 {2020, 19 0™ of the raxante prant far tre year Taxation for orhier

sl n s el n e 30 The rates prevailig 1 e resoerbive loosdhctions

102

Argiva G oup mitod feomp iy
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Tre tax foraaith /S ciiarge for the year (a s e recon: e 1o the [oss nefore fas i the incoire sratamient a5 to lows

Year ended vear ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020

£m £m
- . i .
T o~ 4 - _ z
Taee e - EES . ! -
T Sy -
1 - AR RN - -
S e s - -
Toral tax {cradity / ctharge for the year (62.0) 38
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wors 190070 b e gete ot
DOINC PAay 7
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J3 oy o iite 0
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0 2500 fran ] cotes
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el e oy e as . .
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e 3t e 18- e 2500 30 P
L AT DO e bt ey 20 0 T S .
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(SR I
13 Dividends
Year ended Year ended
30 lune 2021 30 1une 2029
£ par share £m £ pershare £m
Total dividends payahle to mnonty mterasts 0.1 0.1
o p SEteA g e AT 3 S, LRI
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14 Goodwill

Cost:

At 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021

Accumulated impawrment losses:

KL TR [ B P

At 30 June 2021

Carrying amount:

At 30 June 2021
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i
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Licences Oevelopment Access rights Software Totra!
costs
£m fm £m £m £m
Cost
- -
At 30 june 2021 137 22.5 151 134.7 156.3
Accumuiated arnartisation
At 30 lune 2021 5.2 112 153 31.2 116.0
Carrying amount
5.5 11.3 235 0.3
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehotd
buildings

Freehold land
and buildings

£m fm
Cost
i I
oo
rty ol 1
. , "
TN " I - 10
e 3220 135.3
I :
T ' | [
.
At 30 June 2021 3265 145,/
Accumulated deprecration
PR b
1
. . i | 1 !
" - 571 10.9
A -
At 30 June 2021 53.9 7.3
Carrying amount
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" 1 1
Fooctold iang s leded anoe [FE Rt NS o : L

dapieorated o ety s £ L the deased 3oty

viRstared L CLs7ury Tee o st of B3 T 2020 05
sp Hggse g men ssargran o e ded wath s leasenslo maldings

v
L1750t smdyer fhe i, ol
i

Foor sanm -t s prey sy nelloes Tha cany g value sfoapta s

e ferest oondechy i

wrEnt A4 tL 0 L s

Asacts DAy Do picdged 4, secnr,

dene fanir ey free core 3300 sty

Argrea arong Linated foampany eg 0525100 1)

whir i Pase 40ar g

ooet, o

Plant and
equipment

fm

1,786.6

781.1

918.5

3033

AT

acsuiston ot
JOLITTIDNT 3o

fivam]

Aoty

T b 200

b eoat gorea

Assets under the Total
course of canstruction
{AUC)

£m £m

1031 23575

128.8 23268

8821

1,034 8

128.8 1392.0

-

Iothe Gron b eora g

P Ee

105



Annual Repart andg Carsotidated Finaraal Statenants 2023

17 Interest in associates and joint ventures
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Year
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18 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables

oy PP
P Pt

Contract assets  accrued incoma

heeodentifien s as fohows.

oo Caer el rece v ey whien are 0ast e bt where 2o ndicanor of fon oo rabi iy

30 lune 2021 30 June 2020

£m £m
128.0 1331
61.2 64.6
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SRS 30 5T Rhan -

17
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30 June 2021 30 June 2020
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19 Deferred tax
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20 Cash and cash equivalents

Total cash aird cash equivatents

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
fm £m

[ N
2435 1191

21 Discontinued operations and disposal group held for sale

O 51 2020,

ne Groun ot ity The u-of tas the

CiyeaTheed gperition

diposalor e

arp
2000

EESRT LA Y =Thi

N0 AN 3L b s exs min

Tre post tax 2a 00 danesa of

RO A

weTe”

Result of discontinued operations

SOT T AR T e e Tyt T TR

30 fune 2021

182041

782.1
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Statement of cash flowe
The statement at casn bt ows includes e followmg amo .nty relatap to discontirusd operat’ons

30 June 2021 30 lune 2020
£t frin
i ' - :
- o -
R o ' 2.5 35.2
Assets and liabilities of disposai group held for sale
30 June 2021 30 Jure 2020
£m £m
- e

T, N SR | -

i g - -
Assets held for sale 1.186.3
- ey . o
tiahdities held for sale 1329.6)

22 Trade and other payables
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£m fm
Current
Trade and aother payabies
a3t L, -
M S
120.0 277.6
Contract liabihties  deferred income 99%.5 96.5
Non-current
355.5 232.9

Contract abilities - deferred income

Acovd Do coritod yoapany o 13825000 0 112
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23 Borrowings

Within current liabilities:

Borrowings due withhn one year

Within non current habilities

LI [

Borrgwings due atter more than one year

Analyses of total borrowimgs hy cureney:

Total borrowings

Deraominated currency

30 lune 2021

£m

237.6

1.323 4

2,148 1
8b 3
384543

30 lune 2020

£m

2,215.8

296.2

200.0
1.861.6

2,148 1
10y 2
17071

59229
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Borrowings falling due within®

Tre woghted Vel age rrerest rate of

Bank loans tormipatorme L.
seniur debt Other loans comprise

30 june 2021 30 June 2020

£tm tm
6,179.3

6,934.9
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wrterost as described abave) 25 34 - o Lsenior bonds and notes diven below:
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Borrowings: Refarence At tJuly 2020 Lease Amouitts repaid At 30 lune 2021
movements
£m £m £m £m
Le . A Vo . R Tz .-
: Tt (LI v " M " !
S - :
vt R I " T oo
T ' T
Total bank leans and private placements 2,940.0 {1,252.8) 16772
- 1 il - . ' -
Ve . I R
Total borrowings excluding accrued interest 52110 [15.6) {1,262 8} 39326
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24 Leases

Leases as lessee (IFRS 16}

The Growd ralds edse arangar ooty aneanty rel s, Do L DO ety A we i Tles

Right-of-use assets

Riobr ot voe et related mo ieased propertios and aaod tother "ma avestrert gropeiiy) ate preseatan o plant aod

Corromert Plant a0 stagtesst eaies elate o the ase of Blre ot feed telecarirn ostor ERE N
e et
Leasehold buildings Piant and Total
Em eguipment
fm £m
-- \ I
- [N LR EN - HIE :
a0 i weent N .
v o .
At 30 June 2020 633 5L 119.3
L oy H
| st \ i
Lo . ' [ ISP 1 -~
Balance at 30 lune 2021 64.6 35.3 9939
Amounts recognised in the Income Statement
Leases under IFRS 16 Year ended Year ended
30 June 20321 30 June 2020
fm £tm
. 0t Tl S - e IR - Z
| . - .

Amounts recognised in the Cashflow Statement

Year ended 30 Year ended 30
fine 2021 June 2020

£m £m

32
<0

drscnsed nr vete 25 Froandd: cairaren s 3o ssi canagzenen
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25 Financia! instruments and risk management
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Amounts falling due

Interast Tatal financial
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27 Notes to the cash flow statement
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28 Financial commitments and contingent liabilities
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30 Related party transactions

Baaces anctt73n-act 0 s helwee s the
Cormoany aod 05 sobsideries, which
ace celated paries, nave een
elimmatec o0 corsaldat.on 1ad are

potdsinsed ety rote

P
srherie are st v oote 249
Tranid s berweer the Growo and

ity assnoiates, omt ventures 3ad
eatites wnder cormmon of aence are

dine nsad below,

The desciosure of trasacoors w.rh
~elated parties reflocts tne venods In
wrich the revdted parry ceiation: hips
ex 5 The ciscosure of amourts

ourstarding toffrom related gaties at

herenorting date ref ects reratmd

aarty ceeat onsbips 3t taar date

Trading transactions

Dur ng the yedr ende 3t Juoe 2021
e Group entered ato e foliowing
Foyact s wnth reiated narmes who

are ol members of e Groog

AT INAUTIONS Are Or Thcg party

eSS A0 A OGN TANUINE D4 30Ces, Are

vred ard are ot

Drerest e, un

Subpect to ary financi: 2na 1tee oy

aitber party,

AsEr U jure 2021t g o0

rese yate o assucates was £0 2m
(2020 £0 S ang e ariount pay1a.e

TOASSOUATES W is £ 2020 FO dimh

Sale of goods and services

Year ended
30 lune 2021

£m

A5 ar P fene 2021 the 3 nounT

Ay ar 30 Jane 2027 rhe 4ot
fefey b From entities oo

COTIMOr I eence Wi Lo e 12020

£l &)

Year ended
30 June 2020

Purthase of goods and services

Year ended
30 June 2020

Year ended
30 june 2021

£m £m £m
5.6

54 8.1

Remuneration of Directors and key
management personnel

The re neresat an of the Directo 5 and

L€y M age ent porsonny af rae
Group 13 587 out helow o aggresate tor

Ao gf the gatego s cpen it ed

2V Re ated Party Bisdionu 2

T

Toere e g ey of the Dicectors
12020

Tho e hers of the Drector, 30d vy
Wl:‘.!‘!jgt“nellf HErsgang 'F-f](l‘ iy
Frareral T At wibn tee Groun

dioriag the year, other “han e

correrhon with e servne

Foartbter anfarmiat onv o tespert of e

fatory Dreciors, aciuding the

Soghost pact Divectar, ~as besn
urosidac oo page 134

Argrs Groug [netod scampany 1eg 0h2 5400 1 1

Year ended
30 june 2020

Yaar anded
30 june 2021

£Em fm

59 6.8

Investor transactions

There e twd Wesfor compan

FICAL andd pMUF I wibhie b are ceated

QAT b Te Groun ot o e e

et 1A 2 oy ertue of sl ane

; e
Lrrectors epart o Turthar aery by of

PAEse 1VESTO T COT pAnies

L
Lo



Annual Report

and Consolidated Fsnanoial Statements 2021

30 June 2021

14 e A
A ' -
- I

MGIE 1T -

MEIF i1+

30 June 2020

LIS

Wt Tang

120 30 1 3000,
EEER RN

e

[IVENRS
N E AT
st

AT 3 Tare
SONIA OF oty

Segy s §

A

Dy

SVoras have b

3l

o.seholds

RER

£,

11 Ty

A2 0oLy
530,000

FLAR"AI S

A R LT

CEsTan N

Voo

sty the o ast

DAB1 b ave gisn Deer

“ecoveny PIAT,

Sod freen,

T died radiny e

0

AENBLEIY

N

dye

[

SR

MGHF 5l »

aro g

storerd rar

yomeTedd ToY

MEIF I +

el et T

[RIRA]

tog s
ralat e B
CROCCleN D 7
of TV seonice,
TeoTmAAT L

OF THE TeCuyery 0 310

Macquarie FICAL +
Prism ¥

£&m £m

oo 1w
Macquarnie FICAL +
Prism *

£€m £m

coba e paran

e sty

St the oy gt




Annual Report and Cansohidated Finoncal Sstatements 2121

Directors’ report for Arqiva Group Limited (‘the
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Company statement of financial position

Note 30 June 2021 20 june 2020
£m £m
Non-currant assets
1.4 08
Current assets
T T, 4.0 39
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Total equity {11 5) (10 7}
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Company statement of changes in equity

Balance at 1 July 2019

PR

Balante at 30 lune 2020

vo,Aar

Balance at 30 June 2021

Share capital”
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Argiva Group Limited accounting policies and other information
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2 Directors remuneration
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3 Deferred tax
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Campany Country of Principal activities Yearend Percentage of ordinary
incorporation shares held

AL L Lo T T T T P
, NIRRT ok AT . '
B T st t oo

- ' ot . I
' . H el P
o N 1
. o ' v I
. e - | ) , N .
o T, v ' ' '
' -, ' " I ' 1 P )T !
E B ' e N et N B ' :
i - . i _ 3 (ol 1 '
Yo ry, Wt ' o L. N .
[ . N \ . e " . o e,
[ 4 ) N N
H - - - '
T e [N ' Tt - Lo , N
' | e e ' , i R s
\ ron A 1. e - ol B o Wt - il o 0 4 1
! - * - N 1 o
T " - - o "
' i _o - i '
. . . [ . . '
" _ [ . ° PRI
- 1 - !
o , e . T ,
" Lo -
P s | ) . I
!
- '
N . e " i . v L ' ,
s _ - 17 -7 AT
N 4 - - " “
' ' 1ot 2 _ [N HS , s . .
' _ . . ‘ LN ' i
\ = T T A [ - 1 ' L W !
oA B e o< \ T, - - . " "
. ' ., 4. o . - " i
L ' -
A - " . r i
o i ' PR RIS - [EARE I 1} i
1 | N [ B I o ' _ '
1 ! . 3 . . .
) . . N ' e o 1 R [ .
' [ . ' A '
- - - .
. e ! s — ' i

Apqrea drocp Lonted icampany re 5 d5 1510010



Annual R

Wi e boylow g exe

WL st

Hamatire, SO21 20A

part and Consobdatod Financial Statemrents 2021

ettoftice ureace of e sansTd Ay comnanies e was Crawley Courr,

Company

Proagd o

E T

Registared office

Chothe by g niterosty

e s 4

Company

lomtventures

Assocate vndertglongs:

Lountry of
mLerpofation

Principal activities

Repistered office

Year end

Percentage of
ordinary
shares held



Annual Report and Consabdated Financial Statements 2021

The following compares 't the Groaw w.!l adopt te Deoarinreat for Basiness Encogy and Indastaal 5t oaregy (BEIS)
audi exerration o the year anded 30 Lo 2021 Ay the nibmate parent comoEny, AGL has gnacacteed the debig 3nd

abihtios seld witon thase companes a5 cequired oodes sechion 4794 o the Comaames Art 2006

Company Campany registration

nuimber
O S L TR EPT N I e
‘ [ e ! Sl
e P I T . - T )
T L L "

HEI [N tod T
Seti Loty L N
B 1t ‘ T
o A o - W
N )
P I 1 i
i IR . i T
Voot A R : T
s Lol A Lo IERERR A

LE e oo a T e
\ PRI TR S S AN
z [EETERPTRI PN Sttt
' [ - el
I SR : R
LRV RN " - v woRET

Tre followmg danms t corpis es wiin v re Groop wnl take the exemptas trow prega g sod fooag fnance statemeants

forthe year ended 30 J00e 2021 1oy wrrine 00 3940 ara s 348A of Compantes Act 2000 cospet fivery 1 A tne o aimate narent
corrpany AGL Koy 2uracteed the vanous debis ard i mes s d with v thoese concpaies sren el wnilee sacnoe 39470

of me Compares Act 2000

Company Company registration
nuirher

i . IR
- I L R
' [T A e T

Vet " [T -
Yoo ' BT b
R R A
o " ' .
Vo

[ i " Jal T ne
. ' I ST W et
- e o [
s Gt ]

> H 3 . o ' T

Lo e e -
JEERN 1 P TR TR ' t)oaT

Argglea aroup Limeted mompany «
1 ! 3




Annual Report and Zonsohdated Finangial stateémen

.

5 2021

Company

The Comoany

et the Inllow g Buestnients

RRFI Tl LR

Company registration
number

Carrying value

At 30 June 2021




Annual Report and Consoldatad Finanaial Statements 2021

6 Other payables

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

£fm
o e ot ' [N
Toral 15.9

T Co e oy vas v nayables tar cn e a%eT MOTe T 0 v yias . Aonnts 0ayan-e ta dTher Groan eontie, e

aaecired inteent free, and epdyate o ile »and

/  Related parties

Cormna oy bas apnned e s oe s within RS 1T ro Be eaeips fom the tistiasiae af transacon ., patec=i noi,

D A0S 00757 1 S 3 Gooap ety i owholy ownod oy Aarother Gronp enhity

Jt.

8 Controlling parties

The Compa vy s owned Dy g conae e At ararehontors nonding Canada Pess on Pran lovest neot Boara Rlacga e
3r

an
el ot

Fvropea~intrasrracio e Foore boorher Mg arie mamaged foe

Tha largos avc e allest groun in ws e man casgles of the compaay are consaidated sy hoaded oy S-gys Gro o

A Groud FInTee G0 ity re s 25 i

£im

1146

poaed



